
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
II. Approval of Agenda

III. Public Comment
IV. Chairman's Remarks
V. Message from the Executive Director

VI. Committee Reports
VII. Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items

VIII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports

IX. Correction and Approval of Minutes

X. Other Business

XI. Closed Session

XII. Adjournment

Michael A. Bilandic Building
160 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60601

 

Suite S-1000

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

June 11, 2019
9:30 a.m.

REGULAR MEETING

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 1



Call-In: 888-494-4032 2:30 PM
Passcode: 431 498 6139# 172263

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

1 Blessing Hospital Quincy (Adams County) $104,000,000                        -                         30 PL/SP

Beginning Farmer - Brian J. Kropf Yorktown Township (Henry County) $295,700                        -                          -   LK

$104,295,700                        -                         30 

Tab Staff

3 RF/BF

4 PL/SP

5 CM/JS/XG

6 EW/RO

7 EW/RO

Resolution Adopting the Budget of the Illinois Finance Authority for Fiscal Year 2020

Executive

Resolution Regarding Continued Appointment of Executive Director of the Illinois Finance Authority

TOTAL CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS

2

Private Activity Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

Board of Directors
June 11, 2019
Page 2

NEW BUSINESS

CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS

Action

RESOLUTIONS

Governance, Personnel, and Ethics

Resolution Approving the Schedule of Regular Meetings for Fiscal Year 2020

Conduit Financing

Resolution Authorizing Amendments Relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (Ingalls Health System) and Illinois Finance 
Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (UCM Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc. Obligated Group); and Approving Related Matters

Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to the Bond and Loan Agreement dated as of June 1, 2016 with 
Lake Forest Academy and the Northern Trust Company and Approving the Execution of an Amended Bond and Certain Other Agreements Relating Thereto; 
and Related Matters

Audit, Budget, Finance, Legislation, Investment and Procurement

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Date:  June 11, 2019 
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman George Obernagel 
 Michael W. Goetz, Vice Chairman Terrence M. O’Brien 
 James J. Fuentes Roger Poole 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Beth Smoots 
 Lerry Knox Jeffrey Wright 
 Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller 
 
From:  Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
 
Subject: Message from the Executive Director 
 
 
Dear Member of the Authority: 
 
 As we approach the close of the Authority’s Fiscal Year 2019, I am pleased to highlight two 
specific organizational accomplishments during the past thirty days.  
 

C-PACE Conduit Bonds 
 
First, Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (“C-PACE”), a cornerstone of the Authority’s 

Transformation Initiative, is an integral component to the Authority’s anticipated revenue earnings for 
the Fiscal Year 2020 budget.  C-PACE is a comparatively new economic development tool in our state 
and remains an emerging market throughout the country.  Today, 36 states have some level of PACE 
authorization in statute but only 20 states have developed PACE markets.  In Illinois, after nearly a 
decade of discussion, the Illinois Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (the “PACE Act”) was enacted in 
August 2017 (Public Act 100-0077).  Under the PACE Act, counties and municipalities may establish C-
PACE programs so commercial real estate owners in their communities can finance a wide variety of 
energy efficiency and water conservation capital improvement projects through a voluntary special 
assessment.  The initial 2017 legislation contemplated that state involvement would be limited to the 
enabling legislation and C-PACE programs would be locally or privately driven (the least inherently 
standardized model).   

 
The initial 2017 legislation was ultimately deemed cost-prohibitive by program administrators 

and capital providers.  Additionally, counties and municipalities lacked subject-matter expertise and 
resources.  In response to six months of failed C-PACE implementation, the Authority adopted a 
Resolution in February 2018 conveying its desire to develop C-PACE financing options for counties and 
municipalities based on its extensive organizational expertise in executing conduit financings.  In pursuit 
of this strategy, the Authority worked with the General Assembly regarding ideas to expedite C-PACE 
implementation (see Public Acts 100-0919; 100-0980).  Granted a seat at the table by the new legislation, 
the Authority began working with C-PACE stakeholders to develop an implementation plan based on 
lessons learned from other states.  As a result, the Authority developed a strategic state support model for 
counties and municipalities founded on the principles of standardization, efficiency and affordability.  In 
doing so, the Authority further recognized that the PACE Act needed to be brought up to standard with 
comparable Illinois special assessment laws.  Accordingly, the Authority worked with its environmental 
partners, Rep. Natalie A. Manley (D-Romeoville), and Senator Melinda Bush (D-Grayslake) to introduce 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 3



 
 
HB3501, a comprehensive technical rewrite of the PACE Act which also adds natural disaster (or 
resiliency) protections and certain public health benefits as financeable C-PACE projects, including lead 
pipe mitigation and removal.  HB3501 unanimously passed the Illinois Senate on May 24 and the Illinois 
House of Representatives on June 1; the legislation now awaits the Governor’s signature.  

 
C-PACE represents a major resource commitment by the Authority.  The large potential double 

bottom line impact for the state and the Authority is worth the significant investment.  Importantly, the 
Authority’s C-PACE bond financing service will be a pure conduit structure that encourages private 
investment in energy efficiency, infrastructure resilience, and public health through lower interest rates 
and financing terms well-aligned with useful life of each commercial real estate capital improvement 
project despite providing no tax-exempt benefit in the majority of circumstances.    

 
Public Universities and Non-Profit Conduit Bonds  
 
Second, the Provident Group-UIUC Properties LLC – University of Illinois at Urbana 

Champaign Project (“Provident Group-UIUC Project”) transaction closed and funded on May 30.  The 
$71.5 million of bond proceeds borrowed by this public-private partnership will finance 2 large building 
projects located on the flagship campus of the University of Illinois, including (i) an instructional facility 
for the College of Engineering and (ii) a feed technology research facility for the College of Agriculture, 
Consumer and Environmental Sciences.  Bond proceeds will also finance related off-site improvements 
for the projects, including utilities.  The Authority issued federally tax-exempt conduit bonds on behalf of 
the not-for-profit project owner and developer selected by the University of Illinois System to build the 
projects.  Lease payments from the University will cover debt service on the related bonds.  This public-
private partnership ownership and financing structure will accelerate project construction and delivery of 
these projects to the University, and upon extinguishment of the debt the projects will be donated to the 
University.       

 
The Provident Group-UIUC Project represents the culmination of years of Authority 

commitment, including necessary changes to state law, providing similar double bottom line benefits the 
Authority now anticipates for C-PACE.  The Authority’s predecessor closed and funded the first 
transactions utilizing this ownership/financing structure in the late 1990’s on behalf of Northern Illinois 
University.  In addition to the Provident Group-UIUC Project, the Authority has closed similar projects 
subsequent to the 2011 change in state law (with entities connected to the Collegiate Housing Foundation) 
on the campuses of University of Illinois-Chicago, Northeastern Illinois University, Illinois State 
University and Northern Illinois University.   
 
 June 2019 Project Agenda 
 
 The Authority is pleased to welcome Blessing Hospital (Quincy), University of Chicago 
Medicine, Lake Forest Academy, and a beginning farmer in Henry County to our agenda this month.   
  
 Preliminary Budget and Organizational Recap 
 
 In Fiscal Year 2019, based on investments planned in connection with the Transformation 
Initiative and in response to anticipated revenue disruptions connected with the 2017 federal tax 
legislation, the Authority adopted its first ever deficit budget.  As the Members know, the Authority’s 
revenues from its core conduit sector have been much stronger than we previously anticipated in June 
2018.  On a preliminary and unaudited basis, the Authority expects to finish Fiscal Year 2019 with an 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 4



 
 
operating loss much smaller than previously contemplated at the time of adoption of the Fiscal Year 2019 
budget. 
 
 The Authority also executed successful staff successions in the revenue sectors for Healthcare 
and Senior Living as well as Loan and Guarantee.  We anticipate a similarly successful transition in our 
procurement function.         
 

Path Forward  
  
 This month, we are presenting a balanced budget for consideration by the Members.  Over the 
past year, we have invested in reinforcing our organizational foundation in order to ensure continued and 
expanded impact consistent with our statutory mission to reduce unemployment and improve quality of 
life in Illinois on a self-sustaining basis.  These investments in the internal audit, procurement, talent, and 
legal functions resulted in a stronger, more flexible and improved Authority.  We hope to continue these 
organizational investments in the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 budget as well as continue to diversify 
products and revenues consistent with the Transformation Initiative.      
        

As always, I look forward to continuing to work with you in support of jobs and financing capital 
expansion projects throughout our state. 
 
Respectfully,  
 

 
___________________ 
Christopher B. Meister 
Executive Director   
 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 5



 
 

June 11, 2019 

 CONDUIT

$104,000,000 (not-to-exceed)  
Blessing Hospital 

 

REQUEST 
 

Purpose: Proceeds will be used by Blessing Hospital (“Blessing” or the “Borrower”): (i) to refund their 
Series 2012 Bonds issued by the City of Quincy, Adams County, Illinois (ii) to finance, refinance or 
reimburse the Borrower for all or a portion of the costs of the planning, design, acquisition, construction, 
renovation, improvement, expansion, completion and/or equipping of certain health facilities owned and 
operated by the Borrower, including, but not limited to, the completion of the  4th floor, and the addition 
of a 5th floor and a 6th floor, at the Moorman Pavilion located on the Borrower’s 11th Street Campus (iii) 
pay capitalized interest, if necessary, (iv) provide working capital, if necessary, (v) establish a debt service 
reserve fund, if necessary, and (vi) to pay for the costs of issuance. 
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds. 

Extraordinary Conditions: None. 

BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution (one-time consideration). 

MATERIAL CHANGES None.  This is the first time this project has been presented to the IFA Board of Directors. 

JOB DATA 2,400 
2,400 

Current jobs 
Retained jobs 

0 
30 

New jobs projected 
Construction jobs projected 
 

DESCRIPTION ● Location:  Quincy/Adams County  

 ● Blessing is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation which operates a 327 licensed bed sole community 
hospital in Quincy, Illinois in Adams County.  Blessing has over 50% market share in its primary service 
area.  The Medical-Dental Staff is composed of 205 physicians, representing 34 fields of medical 
specialization.  Blessing is a Level II trauma center serving the community of Quincy and the 
surrounding rural population.   
● Blessing offers a wide range of services including:  Ambulatory Surgical Services, Anesthesiology, 
Angiography, Blood Component Therapy, Bone Densitometry, Cancer Care, Cardiac Angioplasty, 
Cardiac Atrial Fibrillation Ablation, Cardiac Diagnostic Testing, Cardiac Electrophysiology, Cardiac 
Rehabilitation, Cardiac Stent Placement, Care Management, Computerized Tomography (CT), Coronary 
Care, Diabetes Education, Discharge Planning, EEG Testing, Emergency Care/Trauma Center, 
Emergency Medical Services, Endoscopic Procedures, Home Care Skilled, Hospice Inpatient and 
Respite, Intensive Care, Intravenous Therapy, Kidney Stone Lithotripsy, Laboratory Services, Magnetic 
Resonance Imaging, Mammography, Maternity Care, Medical/Surgical Nursing Care, Miraluma Breast 
Imaging, Neurological Testing, Nuclear Medicine Testing, Nutritional Assessment, Occupational 
Therapy, One Day Surgery, Pain Management Services, Palliative Care, Pathology, Pediatrics, 
Pharmacy, Physical Therapy, Psychiatry, Pulmonary Rehabilitation, Respiratory Therapy, Robotic 
Surgery, Skilled Nursing Care, Sleep Center, Social Work Services, Speech Therapy, Stereotactic Breast 
Biopsy, Stereotactic Radiotherapy, Ultrasonography Testing, Wound Clinic/Hyperbaric Therapy and 
Surgical Services including Cardiac Bypass, Ear, Nose & Throat, General, Gynecological, Maxillofacial, 
Neurological, Ophthalmic, Oral, Orthopedic, Plastic & Reconstructive, Thoracic, Urological and 
Vascular. 

SECURITY ● The bondholders will have a security interest in the Gross Revenues of the Borrower. 
 

STRUCTURE ● The plan of finance contemplates one or more bank direct purchases by DNT Asset Trust, a subsidiary 
of JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A., and BMO Harris Bank N.A. 
● Bonds will mature no later than 2048. 

SOURCES AND USES Sources:   Uses:  

 

IFA Bonds 
 

$103,185,000 
 

Refund the Series 2012 
Bonds 

New Money 

$57,660,000 
 

$45,000,000 

   Cost of Issuance $525,000 

 Total $103,185,000 Total $103,185,000
RECOMMENDATION Project Review Committee recommends approval. 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 6



Blessing Hospital            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       June 11, 2019 
Page 2       Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
BOARD SUMMARY 

May 14, 2019 
 
Project:  Blessing Hospital 

STATISTICS 

Project Number: 12447 Amount: $104,000,000 (Not-to-Exceed) 
Type:   501(c)(3) Bonds IFA Staff: Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini 
Location:   Quincy, IL County/Region: Adams/West Central 

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution No IFA Funds at Risk  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds No Extraordinary Conditions 
Project Review Committee recommends approval. 

PURPOSE 

Proceeds will be used by Blessing Hospital (“Blessing” or the “Borrower”): (i) to refund their Series 2012 Bonds 
issued by the City of Quincy, (ii) to finance, refinance or reimburse the Borrower for all or a portion of the costs of 
the planning, design, acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement, expansion, completion and/or equipping of 
certain health facilities owned and operated by the Borrower, including, but not limited to, the completion of the  4th 
floor, and the addition of a 5th floor and a 6th floor, at the Moorman Pavilion located on the Borrower’s 11th Street 
Campus (iii) pay capitalized interest, if necessary, (iv) provide working capital, if necessary, (v) establish a debt 
service reserve fund, if necessary, and (vi) to pay for the costs of issuance. 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bonds that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital projects that 
will be used to further their charitable mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal tax-exempt status on interest 
earned on the Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense.  
 

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

JOBS 

Current employment:     2,400  Projected new jobs:   0 
Jobs retained: 2,400 Construction jobs: 30  
 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

IFA Bonds 
 

$103,185,000 
 

Refund the Series 2012 
Bonds 

New Money 
Cost of Issuance 

$ 57,660,000 
 
$ 45,000,000 
$      525,000 

Total 
 

$103,185,000 Total $103,185,000 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 7



Blessing Hospital            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       June 11, 2019 
Page 3       Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 

Security: The Bonds will be secured by a security interest in the Gross Revenues of the Borrower.   
 
Structure: The tax-exempt fixed rate Bonds will be bank direct purchases by DNT Asset Trust, a 

subsidiary of JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., and BMO Harris Bank N.A. 
 
Interest Rate: Rates are locked in, for the initial terms, as follows: 2.385% for the bonds with a 5 year 

initial term, 2.50% for the bonds with a 7 year initial term and 2.683% for the bonds with 
a 10 year initial term. 

 
Interest Mode: Fixed Rate for each initial term.  
 
Credit Enhancement:  None 
 
Maturity:   Bonds will mature no later than 2048. 
 
Rating: The bonds will not be rated as they will be purchased directly by DNT Asset Trust, a 

Subsidiary of JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. and BMO Harris Bank N.A. 
 
Estimated Closing Date: June, 2019 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

Proceeds will be used by Blessing Hospital (“Blessing” or the “Borrower”): (i) to refund their Series 2012 Bonds 
issued by the City of Quincy, (ii) to finance, refinance or reimburse the Borrower for all or a portion of the costs of 
the planning, design, acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement, expansion, completion and/or equipping of 
certain health facilities owned and operated by the Borrower, including, but not limited to, the completion of the  4th 
floor, and the addition of a 5th floor and a 6th floor, at the Moorman Pavilion located on the Borrower’s 11th Street 
Campus (iii) pay capitalized interest, if necessary, (iv) provide working capital, if necessary, (v) establish a debt 
service reserve fund, if necessary, and (vi) to pay for the costs of issuance. 
 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Blessing is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation which operates a 327 licensed bed sole community hospital in 
Quincy, Illinois in Adams County.  Blessing has over 50% market share in its primary service area.  The Medical-
Dental Staff is composed of 205 physicians, representing 34 fields of medical specialization.  Blessing Hospital is a 
Level II trauma center serving the community of Quincy and the surrounding rural population.   
 
Blessing offers a wide range of services including:  Ambulatory Surgical Services, Anesthesiology, Angiography, 
Blood Component Therapy, Bone Densitometry, Cancer Care, Cardiac Angioplasty, Cardiac Atrial Fibrillation 
Ablation, Cardiac Diagnostic Testing, Cardiac Electrophysiology, Cardiac Rehabilitation, Cardiac Stent Placement, 
Care Management, Computerized Tomography (CT), Coronary Care, Diabetes Education, Discharge Planning, EEG 
Testing, Emergency Care/Trauma Center, Emergency Medical Services, Endoscopic Procedures, Home Care 
Skilled, Hospice Inpatient and Respite, Intensive Care, Intravenous Therapy, Kidney Stone Lithotripsy, Laboratory 
Services, Magnetic Resonance Imaging, Mammography, Maternity Care, Medical/Surgical Nursing Care, Miraluma 
Breast Imaging, Neurological Testing, Nuclear Medicine Testing, Nutritional Assessment, Occupational Therapy, 
One Day Surgery, Pain Management Services, Palliative Care, Pathology, Pediatrics, Pharmacy, Physical Therapy, 
Psychiatry, Pulmonary Rehabilitation, Respiratory Therapy, Robotic Surgery, Skilled Nursing Care, Sleep Center, 
Social Work Services, Speech Therapy, Stereotactic Breast Biopsy, Stereotactic Radiotherapy, Ultrasonography 
Testing, Wound Clinic/Hyperbaric Therapy and Surgical Services including Cardiac Bypass, Ear, Nose & Throat, 
General, Gynecological, Maxillofacial, Neurological, Ophthalmic, Oral, Orthopedic, Plastic & Reconstructive, 
Thoracic, Urological and Vascular. 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 8



Blessing Hospital            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       June 11, 2019 
Page 4       Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

 

Applicant:  Blessing Hospital 
 
Site Address:  1005 Broadway, P.O. Box 7005 
   Quincy, IL 62305-7005 
 
Contact:    Timothy Moore, Chief Accounting Officer 

Linda Voshake, Assistant Treasurer 
 
Website:    www.blessinghospital.org 
 
    
Board of Trustee  Julie Brink, Chair 

Sayeed Ali, Vice Chair 
Maureen A. Kahn, President/CEO 
Timothy A. Moore, Secretary 
Patrick M. Gerveler, Treasurer 
Adam Reyburn, MD, Chief of Medical Staff 
Nancy Bluhm 
David Boster 
Dennis Go, MD 
Timothy D. Koontz 
Thomas Miller, MD 
Harsha Polavarapu, MD 
Abby Reich, MD 
Christopher Niemann 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

 
Borrower’s Counsel:         Schmiedeskamp Robertson        Quincy, IL  Natalie Oswald 

Neu & Mitchell LLP         
Bond Counsel:            Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL  Rich Tomei 
    Latrice Baptiste 
Borrower’s Financial Advisor:  Kaufman Hall Chicago, IL  Gavin McDermott   
Bank/s:         JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Chicago, IL  Sara F. May 
    Whitney Brady 
         BMO Harris Bank N.A. Chicago, IL  Deborah L. Capozzi 
    Brian Kennedy   
Banks Counsel:         Nixon Peabody LLP Chicago, IL  Julie K. Seymour 
    Gretchen Sherwood 
Trustee:          Mercantile Bank Quincy, IL  Clara Ehrhart  
IFA Counsel:          Miller, Hall & Triggs, LLC Peoria, IL  Richard Joseph   
IFA Financial Advisor:          Sycamore Advisors, LLC Chicago, IL  Courtney Tobin 
  Indianapolis, IN Diana Hamilton 
              
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS  

Congressional: 18   
State Senate: 47   
State House: 94 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 9



Blessing Hospital            Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds       June 11, 2019 
Page 5       Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  
 
 

SERVICE AREA 

 

Blessing’s primary service area covers a population of over 150,000 in the Tri-State region of Illinois, Missouri and Iowa. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 10



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Lorrie Karcher 
 
Date:  June 11, 2019 
 
Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 
 

• Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

• Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

• Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for each attached project 
 

• Amount:  Up to $543,800 maximum of new money for each project 
 

• Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 
• Total Requested: $295,700 
 
• Calendar Year Summary: (as of June 11, 2019) 

– Volume Cap:  $10,000,000  
– Volume Cap Committed:  $2,580,384 
– Volume Cap Remaining:   $7,419,616 
– Average Farm Acreage:  54 
– Number of Farms Financed:  10 

 
• IFA Benefits: 

–  Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct IFA or State funds at risk 
–  New Money Bonds:   

– IFA conveys tax-exempt, municipal bond status onto the financing  
– Will use dedicated 2019 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer Bond transactions  

 

• IFA Fees:   
• One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project  
 

• Structure/Ratings:  
• Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s bank (the 

“Bank”) 
• The Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan (typically 1st Mortgage) 
• Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Bank, just as with any 

commercial loan 
• Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured commercial loan 

 
• Bond Counsel: Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. 

Stephen F. Welcome, Esq. 
 Three First National Plaza, Suite 4300 
 Chicago, IL  60602 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 11



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2 June 11, 2019 
 Lorrie Karcher 
 
A. Project Number:  30430 
Borrower(s): Kropf, Brian J. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Tampico, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $295,700 
Use of Funds: Farmland –46 acres of farmland  
Purchase Price: $369,641 / $7,900 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 20% 
% IFA Bonds 80% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% Other Bank Financing 0% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Yorktown 
Counties/Regions: Henry / Northwest 
Lender/Bond Purchase: Farmer National Bank / Luke Larson 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:     16  
 State Senate:        37 
 State House:        74 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin on May 1, 2020. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, 
with the first interest payment date to begin on May 1, 2020 with the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding 
balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 12



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: June 11, 2019 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to the Bond 

and Loan Agreement dated as of June 1, 2016 with Lake Forest Academy and the Northern Trust 
Company and Approving the Execution of an Amended Bond and Certain Other Agreements Relating 
Thereto; and Related Matters 

 IFA Series 2016 File Number: 12347 
 
Request: 
 
Lake Forest Academy, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Borrower”), and The Northern Trust 
Company (the “Bank” or “Bond Purchaser”) are requesting approval of a Resolution to (i) authorize the 
execution and delivery of a First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement and (ii) approve related documents 
to effectuate a change in the interest rate formula borne on the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond (Lake 
Forest Academy) Series 2016 (the “Series 2016 Bond”) for a term expiring on a date to be selected by the 
Borrower and the Bond Purchaser, on which date the Series 2016 Bond will be subject to mandatory tender. 
 
The Series 2016 Bond was directly purchased by The Northern Trust Company in the original principal 
amount of $16,415,000, which remains outstanding in full, payable at maturity on June 1, 2051.  The Series 
2016 Bond is bearing a variable rate of interest based on LIBOR for an initial term of 3 years otherwise ending 
June 20, 2019. 
 
Impact: 
 
Approval of this Resolution will provide consent to changes as agreed to by the Bank and the Borrower 
concerning the Series 2016 Bond.  Specifically, the Bank and the Borrower desire to increase the effective 
interest rate borne on the Series 2016 Bond by approximately 40 basis points and extend the initial term 
through maturity or an earlier mutually agreeable date.  Bond counsel has determined that a new public hearing 
on the project (i.e., “TEFRA Hearing” as defined by Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended) will not be necessary.   
 
Background: 
 
Proceeds of the Series 2016 Bond were loaned to the Borrower to provide all or a portion of the funds 
necessary to: (i) finance and/or refinance the costs related to various capital projects on the Borrower’s 
campus, including, but not limited to, the acquisition, construction, refurbishment, creation, development, 
redevelopment and equipping of a new student center and costs related thereto (collectively, the “Prior 
Project”); (ii) current refund all or a portion of the Authority’s outstanding Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1994 (Lake Forest Academy) (the “Series 1994 Bonds”); (iii) current refund all or a portion of 
the Authority’s outstanding Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Lake Forest Academy), Series 2000 (the 
“Series 2000 Bonds”, and together with the Series 1994 Bonds, the “Prior Bonds”); and (iv) pay expenses 
incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bond and the refunding of the Prior Bonds, all as permitted by 
the Act (collectively, the “Financing Purposes”). 
 
Proceeds of the Series 1994 Bonds were issued to (a) finance all or a portion of the costs of the acquisition, 
construction, refurbishment, creation, development and redevelopment of certain of its facilities, including 
without limitation, equipment, machinery and real and personal property, (b) pay capitalized interest on the 
Series 1994 Bonds and (c) pay certain of the costs of issuance of the Series 1994 Bond. 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 13



Lake Forest Academy  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond  to Bond and Loan Agreement  
Page 2  June 11, 2019 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
Proceeds of the Series 2000 Bonds were issued to (a) finance all or a portion of the costs of acquisition, 
construction, refurbishment, creation, development, redevelopment and equipping of certain of its facilities, 
including, without limitation, equipment, machinery and real and personal property, (b) pay capitalized interest 
on the Series 2000 Bonds and (c) pay all or a portion of the costs of issuance of the Series 2000 Bonds. 
 
All payments relating to the IFA Series 2016 Bond have been current and paid as scheduled. 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 

Borrower Advisor: Longhouse Capital Advisors La Grange Park, IL Lindsay Wall 
Borrower Counsel: Reyes Kurson Chicago, IL  Lauren Mack 
Bond Counsel: Ice Miller LLP Chicago, IL  Jim Snyder 
    Austin Root 
Bank/Bond Purchaser: The Northern Trust Company Chicago, IL  Bonnie Althoff 
    Thomas Wilcynski 
Bank Counsel: Dentons US LLP Chicago, IL  Mary Wilson 
Filing Agent: Amalgamated Bank of Chicago Chicago, IL  Vicky Douyon 
IFA Counsel: Nixon Peabody LLP Chicago, IL  Julie Seymour 
IFA Financial Advisor: Sycamore Advisors, LLC Chicago, IL  Courtney Tobin 
  Indianapolis, IN  Diana Hamilton 
     
    
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-0611-CF__ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO THE BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF JUNE 1, 2016 WITH LAKE 

FOREST ACADEMY AND THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION 

OF AN AMENDED BOND AND CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS RELATING THERETO; AND RELATED 

MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) a body politic and 
corporate duly organized and validly existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the 
“State”), including, without limitation the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, as 
supplemented and amended (the “Act”), is authorized by the laws of the State, including, without limitation, 
the Act, to issue its bonds for the purpose set forth in the Act and to permit the expenditure of the proceeds 
thereof to defray, among other things, the cost of the acquisition and improvement of “projects” as defined in 
the Act; and 

WHEREAS, LAKE FOREST ACADEMY, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Borrower”), 
has requested that the Authority amend its Revenue Bond (Lake Forest Academy), Series 2016 (the “Bond”), 
issued in the original principal amount of $16,415,000 for the purpose of assisting the Borrower in providing 
all or a portion of the funds necessary to: (i) finance and/or refinance the costs related to various capital 
projects on the Borrower’s campus, including, but not limited to, the acquisition, construction, refurbishment, 
creation, development, redevelopment and equipping of a new student center and costs related thereto 
(collectively, the “Prior Project”); (ii) current refund all or a portion of the Authority’s outstanding Variable 
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 (Lake Forest Academy) (the “Series 1994 Bonds”); (iii) current 
refund all or a portion of the Authority’s outstanding Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Lake Forest 
Academy), Series 2000 (the “Series 2000 Bonds”, and together with the Series 1994 Bonds, the “Prior 
Bonds”); and (iv) pay expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bond and the refunding of the 
Prior Bonds, all as permitted by the Act (collectively, the “Financing Purposes”); and 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 14



Lake Forest Academy  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond  to Bond and Loan Agreement  
Page 3  June 11, 2019 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
WHEREAS, the Series 1994 Bonds were issued to (a) finance all or a portion of the costs of the 

acquisition, construction, refurbishment, creation, development and redevelopment of certain of its facilities, 
including without limitation, equipment, machinery and real and personal property, (b) pay capitalized interest 
on the Series 1994 Bonds and (c) pay certain of the costs of issuance of the Series 1994 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2000 Bonds were issued to (a) finance all or a portion of the costs of 
acquisition, construction, refurbishment, creation, development, redevelopment and equipping of certain of its 
facilities, including, without limitation, equipment, machinery and real and personal property, (b) pay 
capitalized interest on the Series 2000 Bonds and (c) pay all or a portion of the costs of issuance of the Series 
2000 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Bond was sold to The Northern Trust Company, an Illinois banking corporation, or 
one of its affiliated entities that is also a financial institution (the “Purchaser”) in whole; and 

WHEREAS, a draft of the following document is hereby presented to the Authority at this meeting 
(the “Authority Document”): 

First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement and Related Documents, substantially in a 
form approved by the Authority and on file with the Authority, under which parties agreed to 
amend the Purchase Date and the Interest Rate on the Bond and certain other amendments, all 
as more fully described in the Authority Document. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

Section 1. Findings.  Based solely on the representations made by the Borrower, the Authority 
hereby makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the Borrower, the Bond to be issued 
by the Authority and the facilities financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bond: 

(a) The Borrower is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois; 

(b) The Borrower has properly filed with the Authority its request for assistance in 
providing funds to the Borrower which the Borrower will use for the purposes aforesaid; 

(c) The facilities to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bond do not 
include any property used or to be used for sectarian instruction or as a place of religious worship nor 
any facility which is used or to be used primarily in connection with any part of the program of a 
school or department of divinity for any religious denomination or the training of ministers, priests, 
rabbis or other professional persons in the field of religion; and 

(d) The Bond was issued for a valid purpose under and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act. 

Section 2. Bond.  The Bond shall be amended and secured by and shall have the terms and 
provisions set forth in the Authority Document (the “Amended Bond”). 

The Amended Bond shall be executed on behalf of the Authority by the manual or facsimile signature 
of its Chairperson, its Vice Chairperson, or its Executive Director and attested by the manual or facsimile 
signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, and may have the corporate seal of the Authority 
impressed manually or printed by facsimile thereon. 

The Amended Bond and the interest thereon shall be a limited obligation of the Authority, payable 
solely out of the revenue and receipts derived by the Authority pursuant thereto as described in the Bond and 
Loan Agreement, as amended. The Amended Bond shall not in any respect be a general obligation of the 
Authority, nor shall it be payable in any manner from funds raised by taxation. No holder of the Amended 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 15



Lake Forest Academy  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond  to Bond and Loan Agreement  
Page 4  June 11, 2019 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
Bond has the right to compel the exercise of the taxing power of the State or any political subdivision thereof 
to pay the Amended Bond, the interest or premium, if any, thereon. The Amended Bond does not constitute in 
any respect an indebtedness of the Authority or a loan of credit thereof within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provision. 

Section 3. Authority Document.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve the 
execution by its Executive Director, or any person authorized by a Resolution of the Authority (each an 
“Authorized Officer”) and the delivery and use of the Authority Document. The Authority Document shall be 
substantially in the form on file with the Authority, or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the 
Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence 
of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from the form of 
such Authority Document hereby approved, and to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval 
and the Authority’s approval of the terms of the Amended Bond. 

Section 4. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, officers, 
agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and things and to 
execute or accept all such documents (including without limitation the execution and delivery of a document 
setting forth the agreement and certification of the parties thereto relating to certain federal tax matters) as may 
be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the Authority Document, and all 
of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents, and employees of the Authority which are in 
conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, 
shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 5. Approval of Acts.  All acts of the officials of the Authority which are in conformity 
with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the Amended Bond, and the same hereby 
are, in all respects, approved and confirmed. 

Section 6. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable 
and if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not 
affect the validity of remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions. 

Section 7. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.  All resolutions and parts thereof in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 8. Full Force and Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage, as by law provided. 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 16



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  
 
Date: June 11, 2019 
 
Re: Entry of Ingalls Health System Entities Into The University of Chicago Medicine Obligated Group 

Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (Ingalls Health System) 
Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (UCM Community Health & Hospital 
Division, Inc. Obligated Group) 

 IFA 2016 File Number: 12359 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Illinois Finance Authority (“IFA”) has issued two series of bonds for The Ingalls Memorial Hospital 
(“Ingalls”), its parent corporation UCM Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc. (“CHHD”), and certain 
related corporations (the “Ingalls Obligated Group”): (i) the $61,860,000 original aggregate principal amount 
of Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (Ingalls Health System) (the “Series 2013 Bonds”), 
$60,915,000 of which are now outstanding, and (ii) the $41,180,000 original aggregate principal amount of 
Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 (UCM Community Health & Hospital 
Division, Inc. Obligated Group) (the “Series 2017 Bonds”), $38,300,000 of which are now outstanding.  The 
Series 2013 Bonds and the Series 2017 Bonds (together, the “Ingalls Bonds”) are secured by promissory notes 
issued under a master trust indenture of the Ingalls Obligated Group (the “Ingalls Master Indenture”). 

CHHD executed an Affiliation Agreement effective October 1, 2016 pursuant to which The University of 
Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) became the sole corporate member of CHHD. 

UCMC is currently the sole member of an obligated group (the “UCMC Obligated Group”) created under a 
master trust indenture (the “UCMC Master Indenture”) which secures approximately $849 million of UCMC 
debt. 

UCMC and CHHD have commenced a transaction (the “Transaction”) which would consolidate the credits of 
the Ingalls Obligated Group and UCMC by adding the members of the Ingalls Obligated Group to the 
obligated group created under the UCMC Master Indenture.  The Transaction will result in the formation of a 
single obligated group that is responsible for all debt of the health system.  Forming a single obligated group 
will allow the system to align credit costs, gain possible reductions in borrowing costs for the Ingalls Obligated 
Group entities, and reduce stand-alone credit rating risk to the current Ingalls Obligated Group.  The combined 
obligated group will also permit combined financial disclosure and ratio covenant requirements and give the 
members the ability to borrow as a unified credit in the future. Upon completion of the Transaction, the Ingalls 
Master Indenture will be terminated, and the Ingalls Bonds will be secured by promissory notes issued under 
the UCMC Master Indenture. 

The Transaction is likely to improve the credit rating on the Series 2013 Bonds.  Moody’s Investors Service 
(“Moody’s”) has assigned a rating of “Baa2” to the Series 2013 Bonds and the Ingalls Obligated Group.  
Moody’s, S&P Global Ratings (“S&P”) and Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) have published their respective municipal 
bond ratings of “Aa3” with a negative outlook, “AA-” with a stable outlook and “AA-” with a stable outlook 
with respect to the unenhanced revenue bonds issued on behalf of UCMC and secured under the UCMC 
Master Indenture.  UCMC intends to apply for new credit ratings on the Series 2013 Bonds from Moody’s, 
S&P and Fitch after completion of the Transaction and anticipates that the rating agencies will assign ratings 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 17



The University of Chicago Medicine Obligated Group  Resolution  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  June 11, 2019  
Page 2  Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  

 
that align with the ratings then assigned to bonds issued on behalf of the UCMC Obligated Group and secured 
under the UCMC Master Indenture.  The Series 2017 Bonds are privately placed and are not rated. 

The proposed IFA resolution approves the execution by the IFA of amendments to the Ingalls Bond documents 
and certain other documents in order to accomplish the Transaction.  As required by the Series 2013 Bond 
documents, CHHD and UCMC are currently in the process of soliciting the consents of not less than a majority 
of the owners of the Series 2013 Bonds to the amendments necessary to complete the Transaction.  The Series 
2017 Bonds were privately placed and CHHD and UCMC expect the owner of the Series 2017 Bonds to 
consent to the Transaction.  The Transaction will not be completed until the requisite bondholder consents 
have been obtained.  Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an opinion that the Transaction will not 
adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Ingalls Bonds. 

IFA staff recommends the approval of the accompanying resolution. 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 18



The University of Chicago Medicine Obligated Group  Resolution  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  June 11, 2019  
Page 3  Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  

 
RESOLUTION 2019-0611-CF__ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013 

(INGALLS HEALTH SYSTEM) AND ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017 (UCM COMMUNITY 

HEALTH & HOSPITAL DIVISION, INC. OBLIGATED GROUP); AND 

APPROVING RELATED MATTERS 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and 
exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, as supplemented and amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its Illinois Finance Authority Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2013 (Ingalls Health System) (the “Series 2013 Bonds”) and its Illinois Finance 
Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (UCM Community Health & Hospital 
Division, Inc. Obligated Group) (the “Series 2017 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2013 
Bonds, the “Bonds”) for the benefit of The Ingalls Memorial Hospital, an Illinois not for profit 
corporation (“IMH”); and 

WHEREAS, as security for the Bonds, IMH issued and delivered certain Direct Note 
Obligations (the “Ingalls Obligations”) pursuant to the Amended and Restated Master Trust 
Indenture dated as of October 15, 1995, as supplemented and amended, and as further 
supplemented, amended and restated by the Second Amended and Restated Master Trust 
Indenture dated as of December 15, 2017, as further supplemented and amended by the First 
Supplemental Master Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2017 (the “Ingalls Master 
Indenture”), among the UCM Community Health & Hospital Division, Inc. (formerly, Ingalls 
Health System) (“CHHD”), IMH, Ingalls Home Care (“IHC”) and Ingalls Development 
Foundation (“IDF”, and together with CHHD, IMH and IHC, the “Ingalls Obligated Group”) 
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as master trustee (the “Ingalls Master 
Trustee”); and 

WHEREAS, CHHD executed a Member Substitution Agreement dated June 30, 2016 
with an effective date of October 1, 2016 pursuant to which The University of Chicago Medical 
Center (“UCMC”) became the sole corporate member of CHHD; and 

WHEREAS, UCMC is currently the sole member of an obligated group created under a 
master trust indenture (the “UCMC Master Indenture”); and 

WHEREAS, UCMC and CHHD have commenced a transaction which would consolidate 
the credits of the Ingalls Obligated Group and UCMC by adding the members of the Ingalls 
Obligated Group to the obligated group created under the UCMC Master Indenture which will 
result in the formation of a single obligated group that is responsible for all master indenture 
secured debt of the combined health system (the “Transaction”); and 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the Transaction, UCMC, IMH, CHHD, IHC and IDF 
(the “New UCMC Obligated Group”) will execute a Second Amended and Restated Master 
Trust Indenture, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Master Trust Indenture 
(the “Restated UCMC Master Indenture”), with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as master trustee, in 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 19



The University of Chicago Medicine Obligated Group  Resolution  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  June 11, 2019  
Page 4  Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  

 
order to reflect the New UCMC Obligated Group and to issue substitute obligations securing the 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, CHHD and UCHC are soliciting the consent of the holders of the 
outstanding Bonds to amendments to the bond trust indentures pursuant to which the Bonds have 
been issued (the “Bond Indentures”) to permit the exchange of the obligations issued pursuant to 
the Ingalls Master Indenture and securing the Bonds for obligations of the New UCMC 
Obligated Group issued pursuant to the Restated UCMC Master Indenture (the “MTI Note 
Exchange”); and   

WHEREAS, JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association or an affiliate thereof (the 
“Series 2017 Bondholder”) is the owner of all of the Series 2017 Bonds and, in connection with 
the Transaction, UCMC, CHHD and the Series 2017 Bondholder expect to (i) execute 
documents adjusting the interest rate on the Series 2017 Bonds to reflect the credit standing of 
the New UCMC Obligated Group and, if deemed necessary and desirable by UCMC and the 
Series 2017 Bondholder, extending the mandatory purchase date and amending other terms of 
the Series 2017 Bonds or (ii) convert the Series 2017 Bonds to a new interest rate mode as 
provided in the Bond Indenture (the “Series 2017 Restructuring”); and 

WHEREAS, UCMC and CHHD have requested that, if required by Bond Indentures or 
any of the other documents related to the Bonds (collectively, the “Bond Documents”), the 
Authority execute supplements or amendments to the Bond Documents necessary to complete 
the Transaction, the MTI Note Exchange and the Series 2017 Restructuring and to provide any 
necessary certificates, consents or approvals as may be necessary in connection with such 
exchange or restructuring; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1.  Approval of Documents. The Authority does hereby authorize and approve 
the execution by its the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director, General Counsel, or 
any person duly appointed by the Members of the Authority to serve in such offices on an 
interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by resolutions of the Authority (each an 
“Authorized Officer”) and the delivery of (i) such supplements and amendments to the Bond 
Documents as may be required to complete and to evidence the Transaction, the MTI Note 
Exchange and the Series 2017 Restructuring and (ii) any and all other certificates, instruments, 
documents, notices, consents or approvals necessary to carry out the Transaction, the MTI Note 
Exchange and the Series 2017 Restructuring.  Such amendments, supplements and other 
documents shall be substantially in the forms approved by the Authorized Officer of the 
Authority executing the same, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such 
Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the forms of such documents. 

 Section 2.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such 
acts and things and to execute or accept all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and 
comply with the provisions of these resolutions, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, 
officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and 
purposes of these resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are 
hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.  Unless otherwise provided therein, 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 20



The University of Chicago Medicine Obligated Group  Resolution  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  June 11, 2019  
Page 5  Pam Lenane/Sara Perugini  

 
wherever in any document executed pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be taken 
by the Authority, such action shall be taken by the Executive Director or the Treasurer of the 
Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, inability or refusal of the Executive Director and 
the Treasurer to act, any two Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, 
empowered, delegated the power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the 
Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the applicable document. 

 Section 3.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 21



 
 
 
 

 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 
 

Date:  June 11, 2019 
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes  Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz  Roger Poole 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek  Beth Smoots 
 Lerry Knox  Jeffrey Wright 
 Lyle McCoy  Bradley A. Zeller  
 
From:  Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
  Jacob Stuckey, Deputy Executive Director  
  Ximena Granda, Senior Controller 
 
Subject: Illinois Finance Authority Fiscal Year 2020 Budget Narrative 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020, the Authority proposes a budget that breaks even while continuing to 
invest in expanding the Authority’s capabilities for positive impact and diversifying its revenue 
pursuant to our statutory mission.  The proposed budget will invest in the development of 
existing employees and the addition of new, junior employees that will strengthen the depth and 
capacity of the team. The addition of two business analysts and an accountant will allow senior 
employees to concentrate their efforts on core Authority business and provide a talent pipeline 
for future transitions. We believe that this new investment will increase revenues in the future 
and allow the Authority to fulfill the maximum potential of its statutory public mission.  This 
proposed budget also supports the necessary investments under the Authority’s Transformation 
Initiative.   
 
Please see a summary of the proposed budget below: 
 

 The Fiscal Year 2020 Budget estimates an increase in total Operating Revenue 
versus the estimated Fiscal Year 2019 total Operating Revenue by approximately 
$754 thousand or approximately 24.7%. This includes approximately $258 
thousand in new, anticipated revenue from the Commercial Property Assessed 
Clean Energy (“C-PACE”) product.  

 The Fiscal Year 2020 Budget estimates an increase in total Operating Expenses 
verses the estimated Fiscal Year 2019 total Operating Expenses by approximately 
$320 thousand or approximately 6.7%. 

 The Fiscal Year 2020 Budget estimates a decrease in total Non-Operating 
Revenue versus the estimated Fiscal Year 2019 total Non-Operating Revenue by 
approximately $170 thousand or approximately 17.2%. 

Since January 2018 and pursuant to our Transformation Initiative, we have implemented a plan 
to diversify the revenues and the public impact of the Authority.  As set forth in past messages, 
we have made material progress with respect to: 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 22



 
 
 

 C-PACE financing; 
 The rejuvenation of the Authority’s participation loan program;  
 The Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program; and  
 The Healthcare Ownership and Project Finance (“Healthcare Asset Ownership”) 

Program. 

We are optimistic about the impact and financial sustainability of the above strategy, which 
includes other initiatives that have the potential for similar positive outcomes per the 
Transformation Initiative. 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 23



 

IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2019-0611-AP__ 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET OF THE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 801-30(e) of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 

3501/801-1 et seq. (the "Act") and Article VI, Section 3 of Resolution No.  2007-07-21, Resolution  
Adopting  the  Amended  and  Restated  By-Laws  of  the  Illinois Finance Authority, the Illinois Finance 
Authority created and existing as a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Illinois, 
particularly the Act (the “Authority”), is authorized to adopt a budget reflecting the revenues and 
expenses of the Authority for Fiscal Year 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director, with the assistance of the s taff of the Authority, has, 
based upon review and analysis, prepared a Budget for Fiscal Year 2020, attached hereto as Exhibit A 
(the "Budget"), to support the operations of the Authority during Fiscal Year 2020 pursuant to the various 
purposes set forth in the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the adoption of the Budget is in the best interest 
of the Authority; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority 
as follows: 
 

Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
 

Section 2. Adoption of Fiscal Year 2020 Budget.  The revenues, receipts and other available 
funds set forth in the Budget for Fiscal Year 2020, commencing July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, 
are hereby appropriated to meet the purposes of the Act.  The Executive Director, in conjunction with the 
other officers of the Authority, is authorized to expend funds during Fiscal Year 2020 in accordance 
with the Budget.  Nothing in this Resolution prohibits the Members of the Authority or the Executive 
Director from revising or supplementing the Budget during Fiscal Year 2020 if necessary and in 
accordance with the Act and the By-Laws of the Authority. 
 

Section 3. Implementation.  The Authority hereby authorizes, empowers and directs the 
Executive Director of the Authority, or his designee(s), to take or cause to be taken any and all such other 
and further actions, and to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all such agreements, instruments, 
certificates and other documents, and to pay all such fees and expenses, as he may deem necessary, 
appropriate or advisable in order to carry out the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 
 

Section 4. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,  
paragraph  or  provision  shall  not  affect  any  of  the  remaining  provisions  of  this Resolution. 
 

Section 5. Enactment.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
  
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 24



 

This Resolution No. 2019-0611-AP__ is approved and effective this 11th day of June, 2019 by 
roll call vote as follows: 
 
 Ayes:   
  
 Nays:   
 
 Abstain:  
  
 Absent:   
 
 Vacancies:  
 
         ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
        __________________________ 
         Executive Director 
 
[Seal] 
 
 
__________________________ 
 Assistant Secretary 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 25



 

EXHIBIT A 

Fiscal Year 2020 Budget 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 26



 ESTIMATED                    
FY 19 

 FY 20 
BUDGET 

 2020 BUDGET 
VARIANCE ($) 

2020 BUDGET 
VARIANCE (%)

Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 1,992,743$          2,614,408$     621,665$          23.8%
Annual Fees 249,502               216,000          (33,502)            -15.5%
Administrative Service Fees 259,200               240,000          (19,200)            -8.0%
Application Fees 22,680                 20,000            (2,680)              -13.4%
Miscellaneous Fees 3,283                   2,000              (1,283)              0.0%
Interest Income-Loans 524,537               713,879          189,342            26.5%
Other Revenue 1,495                   1,500              5                       0.3%
Total Operating Revenue: 3,053,440$          3,807,787$     754,347$          19.8%

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 2,538,738$          2,868,425$     329,687$          11.5%
Professional Services 1,370,050            1,319,000       (51,050)            -3.9%
Occupancy Costs 170,148               179,520          9,372                5.2%
General & Administrative 383,004               412,000          28,996              7.0%
Depreciation and Amortization 16,961                 20,000            3,039                15.2%
Total Operating Expense 4,478,901$          4,798,945$     320,044$          6.7%

Operating Income(Loss) (1,425,462)$         (991,159)$       434,303$          43.8%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous Non-Opertg Rev/(Exp) -$                     -$                -$                 0.0%
Bad Debt Adjustments (Expense) (20,000)                (40,000)           (20,000)            50.0%
Interest and Investment Income* 791,554               1,031,159       239,605            23.2%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Invests (41,220)                -                      41,220              0.0%
Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Invests** 431,692               -                      (431,692)          0.0%
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp) 1,162,025$          991,159$        (170,866)$        -17.2%

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers (263,437)$            0$                   263,437$          

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds -$                     -$                -                       0.0%
Transfers out to other funds -$                     -                      -                       0.0%
Total Transfers In (Out) -$                     -$                -$                 0.0%

Net Income (Loss) (263,437)$            0$                   (263,437)$        

NEW TRANSFORMATION INITIATIVE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
GENERAL OPERATING FUND

BUDGET 2020

1 of 1IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 27



IFA RESOLUTION No. 2019-0611-GP__ 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the "Authority") was created by the Illinois Finance 

Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq., as amended (the "IFA Act"), as a body politic and corporate 
of the State of Illinois and is authorized by the laws of the State of Illinois; 

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the State of Illinois that public bodies exist to aid in the 
conduct of the people's business and that the people have a right to be informed as to the conduct of their 
business;  

WHEREAS, in order that the people shall be informed, it is the public policy of the State of 
Illinois that its citizens shall be given advance notice of and the right to attend all meetings at which any 
business of a public body is discussed or acted upon in any way; 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Open Meetings Act, 20 ILCS 120/ et seq. as amended (the “Open 
Meetings Act”) was created to implement these public policies; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, the Authority is a public body; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, every public body shall give public 
notice of the schedule of regular meetings at the beginning of each calendar or fiscal year and shall state 
the regular dates, times, and places of such meetings. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Authority. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to Section 801-15 and Section 801-25 
of the IFA Act.  The preambles to this resolution are incorporated by reference as part of this resolution. 

Section 2.  Approval of Regular Meeting Dates, Times, and Places.  The Authority approves 
the dates, times, and places of regular meetings attached as Exhibit A, provided that the Authority 
reserves the right to cancel or reschedule regular meetings in accordance with the notice and posting 
requirements of the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 3.  Severability. If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to 
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution. 

Section 4.  Enactment. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.  

 

 

 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 28



 This Resolution No. 2019-0611-GP__ is approved and effective this 11th day of June, 2019 by 
roll call vote as follows: 
 
 Ayes:   
  
 Nays:   
 
 Abstain:  
  
 Absent:   
 
 Vacancies:  
 
        ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
        __________________________ 
         Executive Director 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
__________________________ 
 Assistant Secretary 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 29



EXHIBIT A 
 

REGULAR MEETINGS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 30



 
 

Fiscal Year 2020 
 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS 
OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

 
 

During Fiscal Year 2020, the regular meetings of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority 
(the “Authority”) will be held on the scheduled dates at the times and places listed below. 

 
An agenda for each regular meeting will be posted at the principal office of the Authority, at the 
location where the meeting is to be held, and at www.il-fa.com at least 48 hours in advance of the  
meeting. 

 
Please check www.il-fa.com for updates to times or locations of regular meetings.  Unless 
otherwise noted, regular meetings of the Members will be constituted with a quorum of Members 
physically present at one of the following locations: 

 
 Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, IL 

60601-3124 (the “IFA Chicago Office”); or 
 Other locations to be announced. 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS 

9:30 AM 
 

  Tuesday, July 9, 2019   Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
IFA Chicago Office IFA Chicago Office 

  Tuesday, August 13, 2019 Tuesday, February 11, 2020 
IFA Chicago Office IFA Chicago Office 

Tuesday, September 10, 2019  Tuesday, March 10, 2020  
IFA Chicago Office IFA Chicago Office 

   Tuesday, October 8, 2019     Tuesday, April 14, 2020  
IFA Chicago Office IFA Chicago Office 

  Tuesday, November 12, 2019     Tuesday, May 12, 2020   
IFA Chicago Office IFA Chicago Office 

Tuesday, December 10, 2019   Tuesday, June 9, 2020  
IFA Chicago Office IFA Chicago Office 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All meetings will be accessible to handicapped individuals in compliance with Executive Order #5 (1979) as well as 
pertinent State and Federal laws upon notification of anticipated attendance.  Handicapped persons planning to attend 

any meeting and needing special accommodations should contact Mari Money at the Illinois Finance Authority by 
calling (312)651-1319, TTY (800) 526-0844. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 31



IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2019-0611-EX__ 
 

RESOLUTION REGARDING CONTINUED APPOINTMENT OF 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been created by the 

Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et seq., as amended (the “Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously adopted IFA Resolution No. 2018-1212-EX06 
on December 12, 2018 (the “Appointment Resolution”) whereby the Authority appointed 
Christopher B. Meister to the office of Executive Director of the Authority for a one-year term 
pursuant to Sections 801-15 and 801-25 of the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the action taken pursuant to the Appointment Resolution is subject to the 

provisions of Section 3A-45 of the Illinois Government Ethics Act, 5 ILCS 420/3A-45, et seq., 
as amended (the “Ethics Act”), as a result of such action being taken within 90 or fewer days 
before the end of the current term of the then-serving Governor of the State of Illinois, when the 
then-serving Governor does not succeed himself or herself as Governor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has previously adopted IFA Resolution No. 2019-0312-EX10 

on March 12, 2019 (the “First Continuation Resolution”) whereby the Authority approved the 
appointment of Christopher B. Meister to the office of Executive Director of the Authority in 
satisfaction of the requirements of Section 3A-45(b) of the Ethics Act, for the period from the 
date of adoption of the First Continuation Resolution through and including midnight of June 12, 
2019 (the “First Continuation Period”) to provide for the continued orderly operation of the 
Authority while the Governor determined if any action would be taken in connection with the 
office of the Executive Director of the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Members of the Authority now desire to retain the appointment set forth 

in the Appointment Resolution and approved by the First Continuation Resolution for the First 
Continuation Period by taking action to confirm the appointment of Christopher B. Meister to the 
office of Executive Director of the Authority in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 3A-
45(b) of the Ethics Act for the period from the end of the First Continuation Period through the 
remainder of the term set forth in the Appointment Resolution (the “Second Continuation 
Period”); 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Confirmation and Ratification of the Actions Taken Pursuant to the 

Appointment Resolution for the Second Continuation Period.  Christopher B. Meister is 
hereby appointed to the office of Executive Director of the Authority for the Second 
Continuation Period in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 3A-45(b) of the Ethics Act.  
The Appointment Resolution is hereby confirmed and ratified as of the date of this Resolution.  
This Resolution does not supersede any of the terms of the Appointment Resolution or the First 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 32



Continuation Resolution, and the Appointment Resolution and the First Continuation Resolution 
shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with their original terms. 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution 
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
resolution. 

Section 3. Enactment.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 11th day of June, 2019 by vote as follows: 

Ayes:   

Nays:   

Abstain:  

Absent:  

Vacancies:  

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
                       
                       
                       

             _______________________________ 
Executive Director 

________________________________ 
Assistant Secretary 

 

[SEAL] 

 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 33



 
 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
* Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools. For most other governmental entities, it establishes fair value 
standards for investments in (a) participating interest-earning investment contracts, (b) external investment pools, (c) open-end mutual funds, 
(d) debt securities, and (e) equity securities, option contracts, stock warrants, and stock rights that have readily determinable fair values.   

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Date:  June 11, 2019  
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Beth Smoots 
 Lerry Knox Jeffrey Wright 
 Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller 
 
From:  Ximena Granda, Senior Controller 
 
Subject: Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports as of May 31, 2019** 
 
**All information is preliminary and unaudited. 
 
FISCAL YEAR 2019-UNAUDITED 
 

1. GENERAL OPERATING FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME 
 
a. Total Annual Revenues equal $3.9 million and are $406 thousand or 11.4% higher than budget due 

primarily to higher administrative service fees and interest and investment income. Closing fees year-
to-date of $1.9 million are $554 thousand or 22.8% lower than budget. Annual fees of $225 thousand 
are $15 thousand higher than the budgeted amount. Administrative service fees of $244 thousand are 
$153 thousand higher than budget.  Application fees total $20 thousand and are $8 thousand lower 
than the budgeted amount. Total accrued interest income from loans in connection with the former 
Illinois Rural Bond Bank local government borrowers and other loans totaled $478 thousand (which 
has represented a declining asset since 2014).  Net investment income position is at $1.1 million for 
the fiscal year and is $879 thousand higher than budget.*   
 
In May, the Authority generated $213 thousand in closing fees, lower than the monthly budgeted 
amount of $221 thousand.   
 

b. Total Annual Expenses of $4.1 million were $404 thousand or 8.9% lower than budget, which was 
mostly driven by below budget spending on employee related expenses. Year-to-date, employee 
related expenses total $2.3 million or 17.8% lower than budget.  Professional services expenses total 
$1.3 million or $172 thousand or 15.5% higher than budget.   Annual occupancy costs of $157 
thousand are 2.9% lower than budget, while general and administrative costs are $348 thousand for 
the year, which is 11.0% lower than budget.  Total depreciation cost of $16 thousand is 58.7% below 
budget.  Total cash transfers in from the Primary Government Borrowing Fund (setup to track 
financial activity on behalf of the State of Illinois) to the General Operating Fund is $158 thousand.   
 

c. In May the Authority recorded operating expenses of $541 thousand, which was higher than the 
monthly budgeted amount of $413 thousand.  The increase in monthly operating expenses during 
May was mostly attributable to legal fees resulting from the continued development of the 
Authority’s new Property Assessed Clean Energy business line and payment for the Fiscal Year 2018 
Audit.    

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 34



 
 

2 
 

d. Total Monthly Net Loss of -$91 thousand was driven by lower than expected closing fees and an 
increase in professional services due to legal fees and audit fees. 
   

e. Total Annual Net Loss of -$161 thousand is $812 thousand higher than the budgeted loss of -$973 
thousand.  The reported annual operating loss continues to be better than the forecast operating loss 
due to higher than expected interest and investment income in addition to effective expense control. 
 

2. GENERAL OPERATING FUND-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
In the General Fund, the Authority continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with total net position of 
$59.5 million. Total assets in the General Fund are $60.1 million (consisting mostly of cash, investments, 
and receivables).  Unrestricted cash and investments total $47.1 million (with $1.7 million in cash).  
Notes receivable from the former Illinois Rural Bond Bank local governments (“IRBB”) total $8.3 
million. Participation loans, DACA (pilot medical student loans in exchange for service in medically 
underserved areas in Illinois) and other loans receivable are $4.2 million.  
 

3. AUTHORITY AUDITS AND REGULATORY UPDATES  
 
The first phase of fieldwork by the external auditors began on May 28, 2019, with auditors expected to be 
on the Authority’s premises until June 30, 2019. As the audit progresses, updates will be provided to the 
Board.  
 
The Bonds Audit and the Expenditures, Payables and Equipment Audit remain on track and are the last 
two audits that need to be completed under the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit Plan.      
 

4. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
 
The Fiscal Year Comparison of Bonds Issued, the Fiscal Year 2019 Bonds Issued, and Schedule of Debt 
are being presented as supplementary financial information in your Board package.   
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ Ximena Granda 
Senior Controller 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 35



FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL AGENCY

FUND* FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 1,873,884$          -$                      -$                       -$                 1,873,884$       -$                         1,873,884$       -$                 
Annual Fees 225,264               -                           -                            -                      225,264           -                              225,264           -                      
Administrative Service Fees 244,472               -                           -                            -                      244,472           -                              244,472           -                      
Application Fees 20,000                 -                           -                            -                      20,000             -                              20,000             -                      
Miscellaneous Fees 2,736                   345,887               -                            -                      348,623           -                              348,623           -                      
Interest Income-Loans 477,583               10,378                 1,054                    -                      489,015           28,656,044             29,145,059      -                      
Other Revenue 1,450                   -                           -                            -                      1,450               -                              1,450               -                      
Total Operating Revenue: 2,845,389$           356,265$               1,054$                    -$                 3,202,708$        28,656,044$             31,858,752$      -$                 

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 2,335,245$          -$                      -$                       2,335,245$       -$                         2,335,245$       -$                 
Professional Services 1,285,275            3,793                   2,631                    9,113              1,300,812        -                              1,300,812        -                      
Occupancy Costs 157,101               -                           -                            -                      157,101           -                              157,101           -                      
General & Administrative 347,648               -                           -                            11                   347,659           -                              347,659           -                      
Interest Expense -                           -                           -                            -                      -                       31,959,250             31,959,250      -                      
Depreciation and Amortization 15,513                 -                           -                            -                      15,513             -                              15,513             -                      
Total Operating Expense 4,140,782$           3,793$                   2,631$                    9,124$             4,156,330$        31,959,250$             36,115,580$      -$                 

Operating Income(Loss) (1,295,393)$          352,472$               (1,577)$                   (9,124)$            (953,622)$          (3,303,206)$              (4,256,828)$       -$                 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous non-opertg rev/(exp) -$                      -$                       -$                        -$                   -$                          -$                   -$                 
Transfer of funds and program interest from the State of Illi -                            -                             -                              -                       -                         -                                -                         -                       
Interest and invesment income* 734,808               96,203                 46,676                  514,359          1,392,046        2,510,386               3,902,432        6                     
Realized Gain (Loss) on sale of investment (43,363)                (27,781)                (10,809)                 (11,408)           (93,361)            (851,255)                 (944,616)          -                      
Net Appreciation (Depr) in fair value of investments** 441,493               61,797                 16,472                  143,976          663,738           1,644,075               2,307,813        -                      
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,132,938$           130,219$               52,339$                  646,927$         1,962,423$        3,303,206$               5,265,629$        6$                    

-                       
Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers (162,455)$             482,691$               50,762$                  637,803$         1,008,801$        -$                          1,008,801$        6$                    

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds 157,711$             -$                      -$                       -$                 157,711$          -$                         157,711$          -$                 
Transfers out to other funds (155,849)              -                           -                            (1,862)             (157,711)          -                              (157,711)          -                      
Total Transfers In (Out) 1,862$                  -$                       -$                        (1,862)$            -$                   -$                          -$                   -$                 

Net Income (Loss) (160,593)$             482,691$               50,762$                  635,941$         1,008,801$        -$                          1,008,801$        6$                    
*Interest and Investment income for the month of July are estimates
** Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Investments is not not available as of August 2, 2017

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 AS OF APRIL 30, 2019

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY

1 of 1IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 36



36

Market Sector Principal Issued

501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit3 72,033,094

$1,873,097,019
Local Government 450,000,0001

Bonds Issued - Fiscal Year Comparison
for the Period Ending May 31, 2019

Bond Issuance Analysis

The Authority issued $183,831,820 in conduit debt during the month of March, 2018. This is 7.91% higher than 
March, 2017 at $169,283,909. Total issuance for FY 2018 is $3,058,819,045. This is 15.8% lower than the same 
period for FY 2017 at $3,636,278,309. The IFA has issued 27 conduit bonds and seven beginner farmer bonds 
in FY 2018. 

Fiscal Year 2019

# Market Sector Principal Issued

Fiscal Year 2018

#

15 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 2,749,725
5 Education 403,755,000
7 Healthcare - Hospital 1,308,930,000
5 Healthcare - CCRC 388,700,000
1 Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 20,200,000
7 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 288,464,000
3 Multifamily/Senior/Not-for-Profit Housing 104,045,000

1 P3 Student Housing          94,860,000
1 Local Government 560,025,000

45 $3,171,728,725

Fiscal Year 2017

# Market Sector Principal Issued

18 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 3,765,900
7 Education 304,222,000
1 Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 130,000,000

12 Healthcare - Hospital 2,568,650,000
7 Healthcare - CCRC 310,364,967
1 Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 9,969,162
7 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 221,407,000
2 Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 28,951,409

58 4,142,695,438$        

2 Multifamily/Senior/Not-for-Profit Housing 65,365,000
1 Local Government 500,000,000

19 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 4,698,925
7 Education 408,895,000
4 Healthcare - Hospital 811,655,000
2 Healthcare - CCRC 125,815,000

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 37



0

Total Bonds Issued as of May 31, 2019   1,873,097,019$ 508,304,773$   

Legend: Fixed Rate Bonds as shown
DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond
      VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Variable Rate Bond that does not include the cost of the LOC arrangement.                             
Beginner Farmer Bonds interest rates are shown in section below.

E-PC National Louis University 05/07/2019 Variable 26,500,000

E-PC Provident Resources Group 05/30/2019 Fixed at Schedule 71,525,000

LG Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 04/16/2019 Fixed at Schedule 450,000,000 0

HO Ferrell Hospital Community Foundation 03/27/2019 Variable 34,260,000 0

501(c)(3) Steppenwolf Theatre Company 02/26/2019 Variable 36,000,000 0

A-BFB Beginner Farmer Bond 01/01/2019 Variable 1,812,384 0

HO Memorial Health System 02/05/2019 Fixed at Schedule 130,005,000 130,005,000

501(c)(3) Testa Properties LLC 12/28/2018 Variable 10,033,094 10,033,094

CCRC Westminster Village, Inc. 12/20/2018 Variable 68,565,000 36,394,361

E-PC Brookfield-LaGrange Park Project, Series 2018 12/18/2018 Fixed at Schedule 14,545,000 0

501(c)(3) Chicagoland Laborers District Council Training & Apprentice Fund11/27/2018 Fixed at Schedule 13,844,136 0

501(c)(3) Chicagoland Laborers District Council Training & Apprentice Fund11/27/2018 Fixed at Schedule 12,155,864 12,250,000

E-PC Perspectives Charter School 11/01/2018 Fixed at Schedule 33,885,000 5,200,000

HO Edward Elmhurst Healthcare 11/07/2018 Fixed at Schedule 174,930,000 80,000,000

HO OSF Healthcare System 10/16/2018 Variable 472,460,000 0

CCRC Smith Crossing 10/10/2018 Variable 57,250,000 32,292,318

E-PC Roosevelt University 09/27/2018 Fixed at Schedule 195,340,000 183,030,000

E-PC East Prairie School District Number 73 Series, 2018 08/02/2018 Fixed at Schedule 37,680,000 0

07/01/2018 Variable 2,886,541 0

E-PC DePaul University 07/11/2018 Variable 29,420,000 0

Bonds Issued between July 01, 2018 and May 31, 2019

Initial Interest 

Rate

Bonds Issued and Outstanding 

 as of 

May 31, 2019

19,100,000

Bonds 

RefundedBond Issue Date Issued Principal Issued

A-BFB Beginner Farmer Bond

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 38



Total Beginner Farmer Bonds Issued 4,698,925$    1,086.10

Dane J. & Brittney L. Fletcher 05/01/2019 3.75 356,000 64.00 Montgomery

Shane A. & Donna M. Reymond 04/16/2019 4.00 543,800 120.00 Bond

Luke F. & Amanda C.Zwilling 04/16/2019 4.50 65,000 20.00 Richland

Rollin Wenger 04/12/2019 4.35 131,000 40.00 McLean

Mitchell Wirth 04/04/2019 4.50 145,084 33.20 Shelby

Jason & Jessica 03/22/2019 4.35 241,500 46.00 McLean

Trent & Kayla M. Kilgus 03/06/2019 4.75 165,000 15.00 Livingston

Justin & Kaylee J. Kilgus 03/06/2019 4.75 165,000 15.00 Livingston

Devin L. Aherin 12/28/2018 4.50 200,990 37.00 Montgomery

Elizabeth Niemann 12/28/2018 3.75 180,000 40.00 Macoupin

Aaron &Tiffany Ochs 12/21/2018 4.50 75,000 30.00 Jasper

Lee Waldbeser 12/17/2018 4.75 309,000 41.20 Mclean

Eric Collins 12/17/2018 4.00 533,500 280.00 Wayne

Joseph Marchello 12/04/2018 3.75 400,000 119.00 Bond

Adam Anthony & Susan J.Klingler 11/27/2018 5.00 191,500 20.00 Richland

Tyler and Alisha Heyen 09/04/2018 3.75 180,000 40.00 Montgomery

Philip Hartman 08/27/2018 3.75 269,551 55.70 Ford

Jonathan Deters 07/25/2018 4.32 327,000 30.00 Effingham

Matthew R. Grundy 07/11/2018 4.0 220,000 40.00 Christian

Beginner Farmer Bonds Funded between July 01, 2018 and May 31, 2019

Initial 

Interest 

RateBorrower Date Funded Loan Proceeds Acres County

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 39



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Finance Authority  "IFA"
Agriculture [ b ]

4

Education 5

Healthcare 6

Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwestern Disaster] 11

Local Government 17

Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 18

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 19

Exempt Facilities Bonds 20

Student Housing 
Total IFA Principal Outstanding 

Illinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA"
Education 25

Healthcare 26

Industrial Development 27

Local Government 31

Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 32

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 33

Exempt Facilities Bonds 34

Total IDFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB"
Illinois Health Facilities Authority "IHFA" 45

Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA" 43

Illinois Farm Development Authority "IFDA" [ b ]
48

Total Illinois Finance Authority Bonded Indebtedness [ c ] [ d ]

State Component Unit Bonds [ e ]

IEPA Clean Water Initiative [ f ] 13

Northern Illinois University Foundation, Series 2013
Total State Component Unit Bonds

General Purpose Moral Obligation Bonds
Total General Moral Obligation Bonds

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligation Bonds
Total Financially Distressed Cities Bonds

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Bonds [ g ]

Agri-Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt]

* 3,148,384$      

Agri-Loan Guarantee Program
Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program 64 75 -                  
Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 67 78 711,080           
Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 63 74 907,856           
Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 66 165,980           

* 1,784,915        
Total AG State Guarantees 4,933,299$      

State of 
Illinois

Exposure 
 Categorical

Remaining Capacity 

156,296,019$                   

222,900,100                     
379,196,119$                   

Section I (b)

Section I (c)
Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/825-65(d)]:

6,485,660$       5,803,881$                  385,000,000$    

Total Agri-Debt Guarantees  - Fund # 994
Fund Balance $10,434,771 3,934,187$       3,703,981$                  160,000,000$    

561,903            195,270                       

Total Agri-Loan Guarantees - Fund # 205
Fund Balance  $8,182,950 2,551,473         

846,314            836,564                       
1,143,256         

-$                                -$                               2,000,000,000$       2,000,000,000$                      

Section I (d) Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

-                   -                              

Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/830-25]:

1,068,066                    

2,099,900                    225,000,000      

Clean Coal, Coal, Energy Efficiency, PACE, and Renewable Energy Project 
Financing 3,000,000,000$       3,000,000,000$                      

Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

 Categorical
Remaining Capacity June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

-$                                -$                               50,000,000$            50,000,000$                          

May 31, 2019

-$                                -$                               150,000,000$          150,000,000$                         

May 31, 2019

Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]:
Principal Outstanding  Program 

Limitations 
 Categorical

Remaining Capacity June 30, 2018

28,150,000,000$      3,501,926,217$                      

Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]:
Section I (a) Principal Outstanding  Program 

Limitations 
 Categorical

Remaining Capacity June 30, 2018

1,094,115,000$                1,479,430,000$               
1,099,096                        754,954                          

1,095,214,096$                1,480,184,954$               

369,308,000                    342,852,000                   
9,644,093                        9,644,093                       

24,787,668,104$              24,648,073,783$             

802,946,370                    686,460,277                   

-                                  -                                 
127,905,000                    119,250,000                   

262,490,000                    260,400,000                   

40,568,772                      40,126,365                     
376,559,007                    343,625,406                   

-                                  -                                 

70,000,000                      61,400,000                     
118,700,077                    61,483,136                     
196,622,126                    179,825,370                   

1,225,350,000                  1,604,260,000                
280,423,885                    276,704,080                   

June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

53,290,056$                    57,307,202$                   
4,460,302,159                  4,731,518,983                

14,620,756,197                

23,477,864,640                23,489,867,413               
  

496,388                           -                                 

1,487,273,391                  1,482,111,839                
203,500,000                    203,500,000                   

Total debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act which does not constitute a debt of the Authority or the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of any provisions of the 
Constitution or statutes of the State of Illinois or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Authority or of the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof, or grant to the owners thereof any right to have the 
Authority or the General Assembly of the State of Illinois levy any taxes or appropriate any funds for the payment of the principal thereof or interest thereon, with the exception of certain debt identified below in 
Section I (a), Section I (b), and Section I (d), and is subject to the Authority's $28,150,000,000 total bond limitation [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]:
Section I Principal Outstanding  Total Program 

Limitations 
 Total

Remaining Capacity 

14,063,395,735               
884,478,953                    810,669,573                   

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\June 2019\Treasury Report 03 - Schedule of Debt 2019-05.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2019 Revised
6/6/2019  10:17 AM        Page 1

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 40



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Participation Loans
Business & Industry 86  

Agriculture 98  

Participation Loans Excluding Defaults & Allowances 99  

##

##

Local Government Direct Loans ##

Rural Bond Bank Local Government Notes Receivable** *
FmHA Loans ##

Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA) ##

Total Loans Outstanding

Fire Truck, Fire Station, and Ambulance Revolving Loans
Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program**      Fund # 572 117 * 113

Ambulance Revolving Loan Program**        Fund # 334 ## * 112

Total Revolving Loans

Illinois Power Agency Bonds

Standard Environmental Facilities Bonds
Issued through IFA 22

Issued through IDFA 37

Total Standard Environmental Facilities Bonds

Small Business Environmental Facilities Bonds
Issued through IFA

Total Small Business Environmental Facilities Bonds

Total Environmental Facilities Bonds

Student Loan Program Bonds
Midwestern University Foundation, Series 2015A/B

Total Student Loan Program Bonds

* Balances as of 5/31/2019 are estimated and subject to change.
[ a ] Preliinary, draft and unaudited; total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.
[ b ] Payments in connection with outstanding Beginner Farmer Bonds are only updated annually; amounts inclusive of outstanding Agri-Det Guarantees and Agri-Loan Guarantees
[ c ] Inclusive of State Component Unit Bonds.
[ d ] Pursuant to P.A. 98-90 effective 07/15/2013, after giving effect to the financing or refinancing of an out-of-state project, the Authority shall have the ability to issue at least an additional $1 billion of bonds under Section 
[ e ] Pursuant to GASB Interpretation No. 2, revenue bonds issued for the benefit of other State agencies and component units of the State of Illinois.
[ f ] Does not include unamortized issuance premium as reported in the Authority's audited financials.
[ g ] Pursuant to P.A. 100-919 effective 01/01/2019, up to $2 billion may be issued to finance Energy Efficiency Projects, Renewable Energy Projects, and PACE Projects from the available $3 billion bonding authorization.

17,299,050$           11,057,330$            

** Due to deposits in transit, the Fund Balance at the Comptroller's Office may differ from the Authority General Ledger.  In May 2014, Office of Fire Marshal transferred the Fund Balance to an 
Authority locally held fund.

2,339,686                                        2,339,686                       2,339,686 

1,109,320               

** IRBB Bonds were defeased and converted into a portfolio of notes receivable with the Authority.

$                       680,413 
6,079,859                

1,289,750                501,477                           1,064,894                       

3,206,746                
16,189,730$           7,850,583$              

1,378,640.00    

102,380,000$                 2,500,000,000$       2,397,620,000$                      

58,975,000$                    54,875,000$                   
47,505,000                      47,505,000                     

106,480,000.00                102,380,000.00               

Bonds issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]:
Section V Principal Outstanding  Program 

Limitations 

87,389                             678,418                          

29,100,017              89,384                             

8,305,837                       

19,387,900$     

-                                  -                                 75,000,000              75,000,000                            

15,000,000$                    15,000,000$                   
15,000,000$                    15,000,000$                   200,000,000$                 185,000,000$                         

Section VI Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations Remaining CapacityJune 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

106,480,000$                   

2,425,000,000$       2,322,620,000$                      

4,000,000,000$                      

Bonds issued under the Higher Education Loan Act [110 ILCS 945/10(b)]:

-                                  

 Remaining Capacity June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

-                                 

-$                                -$                               4,000,000,000$       

32,729,453$            13,140,036$                    12,514,841$                   

10,071,037                      

89,384$                           

680,413                          

Plus:  Legacy IDFA Loans in Default 3,170                               3,170                             

 Remaining Capacity June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 5,165                               5,165                             
Total Participation Loans

Section II
 Original Amount 

Principal Outstanding

18,009,260$     

June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

Section IV Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

Office of the State Fire Marshal revolving loan funds administered under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-80 and 825-85]:
Section III Principal Outstanding  Cash and 

Investment Balance  June 30, 2018 May 31, 2019

23,020,158$            

Locally held funds advanced under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40]:

Bonds issued under the Illinois Power Agency Act [20 ILCS 3855/1-20(a)(3)]:

963,250                   140,447                                                    126,006 

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\June 2019\Treasury Report 03 - Schedule of Debt 2019-05.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2019 Revised
6/6/2019  10:17 AM        Page 2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 41



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 

Suite S-1000 

Chicago, IL  60601 

312-651-1300  

312-651-1350 fax 

www.il-fa.com 

Date:  June 11, 2019  
   
Subject: Minutes of the May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting 
 
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Beth Smoots 
 Lerry Knox Jeffrey Wright 
 Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Sullivan Reporting Co. (the “Minutes”) in 
connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), 
begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, 
Illinois 60601, on the second Tuesday of May in the year 2019, pursuant to the provisions of Section 801-
25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of the State of 
Illinois (the “Act”). 
 
To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, May 14, 2019 

9:30 AM 
 

AGENDA: 
 
 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 (page 3, line 1 through page 4, line 3)  
II. Approval of Agenda 
 (page 4, lines 4 through 19) 
III. Public Comment 

(page 4, lines 20 through 22) 
IV. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 4, line 23 through page 5, line 2) 
V. Message from the Executive Director 

(page 5, line 3 through page 7, line 17 ) 
VI. Committee Reports 

(page 7, line 18 through page 8, line 24) 
VII. Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items 

(page 9 line 1 through page 41, line 1) 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 42



 
 
VIII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 

(page 41, line 2 through page 48, line 9) 
IX. Monthly Procurement Report 

(page 48, lines 10 through 21) 
X. Correction and Approval of Minutes 

(page 48, line 22 through page 49, line 14) 
XI. Consideration and Action Regarding Whether to Open Closed Session Minutes from September 

11, 2018 
(page 49, line 15 through page 52, line 15) 

XII. Other Business 
(page 52, line 16 through page 55, line 1) 

XIII. Closed Session 
(page 55, lines 2 through 5) 

XIV. Adjournment 
(page 55, lines 6 through 20) 

 
The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 
enclosed. 
 
Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Ryan Oechsler           
Associate General Counsel 
 
 
Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting 
  2. Voting Record of the May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 43



1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
G
U
L
A
R
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
y
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
1
9
,
 
a
t
 
9
:
3
3
 
a
.
m
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
O
F
 
P
R
O
C
E
E
D
I
N
G
S
 
h
a
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 

4

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
M
a
y
 
1
4
,
 

5

 
 
2
0
1
9
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
u
r
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
,
 

6

 
 
a
t
 
1
6
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
L
a
S
a
l
l
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
S
-
1
0
0
0
,
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 

7

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

8 9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2

 
 
A
P
P
E
A
R
A
N
C
E
S
:
 

1
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
E
R
I
C
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
 

2
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
K
E
 
G
O
E
T
Z
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
R
L
E
N
E
 
A
.
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
 

3
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
E
R
R
Y
 
K
N
O
X
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
E
.
 
L
Y
L
E
 
M
c
C
O
Y
 

4
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
G
E
O
R
G
E
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
G
E
R
 
P
O
O
L
E
 

5
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
B
E
T
H
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
E
F
F
R
E
Y
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
 

6
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 

7
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
R
I
S
T
O
P
H
E
R
 
B
.
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 

8
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
S
T
U
C
K
E
Y
,
 
D
e
p
u
t
y
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
I
C
H
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

9
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
S
A
R
A
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
M
Y
A
R
T
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
L
o
a
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
s
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
I
S
A
 
B
O
N
N
E
T
T
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
P
o
l
i
c
y
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
Y
A
N
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
,
 
I
F
A
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
E
R
R
Y
 
F
R
A
N
Z
E
N
,
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
X
I
M
E
N
A
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
,
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
l
e
r
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
T
I
F
F
A
N
Y
 
M
c
C
O
Y
,
 
I
F
A
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
a
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
W
E
B
E
R
,
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
L
e
g
a
l
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
v
i
s
e
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

1
6

 
 
G
U
E
S
T
S
:
 

 
 
M
R
.
 
G
R
E
G
 
G
A
U
S
,
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
C
F
O
 
o
f
 

1
7

 
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
8

 
 
S
U
L
L
I
V
A
N
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
I
N
G
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
,
 
b
y
 

1
9

 
 
B
r
a
d
 
B
e
n
j
a
m
i
n
,
 
C
S
R
 

 
 
L
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
N
o
.
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
4
8
0
5
 

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 44



3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

1

 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
o
r
d
e
r
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

3

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
9
:
3
3
.
 
 
I
'
l
l
 

5

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
f
i
r
s
t
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

2
4

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
a
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

1

 
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
d
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 

4

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

7

 
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

2
0

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
R
e
m
a
r
k
s
:
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
u
n
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
f
a
s
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
s
o
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
c
a
n
 
g
e
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 45



5

 
 
o
u
t
s
i
d
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
j
o
y
 
t
h
e
 
w
e
a
t
h
e
r
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
h
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

3

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
a
m
b
i
t
i
o
u
s
 

4

 
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 

5

 
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
b
o
u
t
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
d
o
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 
-
-
 
o
r
 

7

 
 
a
 
m
o
m
e
n
t
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
'
s
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
s
s
a
g
e
 
f
r
o
m
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 

9

 
 
o
u
r
 
t
e
a
m
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
k
e
y
 
c
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
o
r
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
o
u
t
g
r
o
w
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
g
r
o
w
t
h
 
o
f
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
p
i
e
c
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
a
t
h
y
 
L
y
d
o
n
 
j
o
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
5

 
 
a
 
l
o
n
g
 
t
e
n
u
r
e
 
i
n
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
e
 
d
a
r
k
e
s
t
 
d
a
y
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
a
n
d
 

1
7

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
1
7
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
U
.
S
.
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
R
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
s
 

1
8

 
 
w
a
s
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 

1
9

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
c
o
r
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
t
o
o
l
 
a
t
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
S
o
 
s
h
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
n
 
e
x
t
r
a
o
r
d
i
n
a
r
y
 

2
1

 
 
c
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
o
r
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
h
e
l
p
i
n
g
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 

2
2

 
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
n
a
v
i
g
a
t
e
 
t
h
o
s
e
 

2
3

 
 
c
h
a
l
l
e
n
g
e
s
 
b
u
t
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
o
 
h
e
l
p
 
u
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
m
e
d
i
a

2
4

6

 
 
i
n
q
u
i
r
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
b
y
 
a
n
d
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
l
y
 

1

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
v
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
h
e
l
p
i
n
g
 
p
u
t
 
i
n
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
f
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
m
i
l
a
r
l
y
,
 
T
o
m
 
M
o
r
s
c
h
 
h
a
s
 
l
o
n
g
 
b
e
e
n
 

4

 
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
h
e
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
y
o
u
n
g
e
s
t
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
T
o
l
l
w
a
y
,
 

6

 
 
w
e
n
t
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
 
c
a
r
e
e
r
 
a
s
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
,
 
a
n
d
 

7

 
 
b
e
c
a
m
e
 
a
n
 
e
x
p
e
r
t
 
i
n
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
-
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
s
.
 

8

 
 
T
o
m
 
-
-
 
T
o
m
'
s
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
s
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
h
i
m
 
i
n
 
a
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 

9

 
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
u
t
,
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
l
y
,
 
h
e
 
w
a
s
 
e
s
s
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
h
e
l
p
i
n
g
 
u
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
a
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
i
g
 

1
2

 
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
;
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
n
e
,
 
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
c
l
o
s
e
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
L
i
s
a
 
B
o
n
n
e
t
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 

1
4

 
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
,
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

1
5

 
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
h
e
a
r
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
L
i
s
a
 
l
a
t
e
r
 
o
n
 
i
n
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
h
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
l
a
y
e
d
 
a
 
k
e
y
 
r
o
l
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
T
o
l
l
w
a
y
'
s
 
E
l
g
i
n
-
O
'
H
a
r
e
 
W
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

1
8

 
 
A
c
c
e
s
s
/
W
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
B
y
p
a
s
s
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
g
e
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

1
9

 
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
o
n
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
T
o
l
l
w
a
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
E
l
g
i
n
-
O
'
H
a
r
e
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
T
o
l
l
w
a
y
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
S
a
r
a
h
 
M
a
n
k
o
w
s
k
i
,
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
3

 
 
u
s
 
o
n
 
T
a
l
e
n
t
 
R
e
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
,
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
A
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
,

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 46



7

 
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
l
a
y
e
d
 
a
 
k
e
y
 
r
o
l
e
.
 
 
L
i
k
e
 
K
a
t
h
y
 
a
n
d
 
T
o
m
,
 

1

 
 
S
a
r
a
h
'
s
 
c
a
r
e
e
r
 
i
s
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
h
e
r
 
i
n
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
,
 

2

 
 
b
u
t
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
f
r
o
m
 
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
J
a
c
o
b
 
S
t
u
c
k
e
y
 

3

 
 
l
a
t
e
r
 
o
n
 
-
-
 
l
a
t
e
r
 
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
m
 

5

 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
 

6

 
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
a
s
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
h
e
a
r
,
 

7

 
 
i
t
 
g
i
v
e
s
 
m
e
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
p
l
e
a
s
u
r
e
 
t
o
 
g
i
v
e
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 

8

 
 
n
e
w
e
r
 
k
e
y
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
e
a
m
:
 
 
D
e
p
u
t
y
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 

9

 
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
J
a
c
o
b
 
S
t
u
c
k
e
y
;
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 

1
0

 
 
a
n
d
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
L
i
v
i
n
g
 
S
a
r
a
 
P
e
r
u
g
i
n
i
;
 
C
h
a
r
l
e
s
 
M
y
a
r
t
,
 
V
i
c
e
 

1
1

 
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
L
o
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
a
 
w
i
d
e
r
 
a
r
r
a
y
 
o
f
 

1
3

 
 
v
o
i
c
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
r
e
n
g
t
h
 
a
n
d
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
.
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
T
a
x
-
E
x
e
m
p
t
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
T
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 

2
0

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 

2
2

 
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
:
 
T
h
r
e
e
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 

2
3

 
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
s
;
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
;

2
4

8

 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
9
9
,
 
D
u
P
a
g
e
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
;
 

1

 
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
U
n
i
t
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
9
5
,
 
L
a
k
e
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
;
 

2

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
D
e
 
L
a
 
S
a
l
l
e
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
P
e
r
s
o
n
n
e
l
,
 
L
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
 

6

 
 
a
n
d
 
E
t
h
i
c
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 

7

 
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 

8

 
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
t
e
m
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 

9

 
 
u
p
d
a
t
i
n
g
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 

1
0

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
s
 

1
1

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
T
a
l
e
n
t
 
R
e
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
,
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
A
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
;
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
;
 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
i
o
n
;
 
a
n
d
 
E
t
h
i
c
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
,
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 

1
6

 
 
a
n
d
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
t
e
m
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
a
 

1
9

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
B
o
n
d
 
H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
.
 

2
0

 
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
a
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
E
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 

2
2

 
 
A
u
d
i
t
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 47



9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

1

 
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
I
t
e
m
s
 

2

 
 
1
A
,
 
1
B
,
 
1
C
,
 
2
,
 
3
,
 
4
,
 
5
,
 
6
,
 
7
 
a
n
d
 
8
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
v
o
t
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
t
o
 
e
a
c
h
 

4

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
,
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
i
t
e
m
,
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
n
y
 

5

 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

6

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
f
o
r
 
e
a
c
h
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
t
e
m
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
o
n
 

1
2

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
1
A
,
 
1
B
,
 
1
C
,
 
2
,
 
3
,
 
4
,
 

1
3

 
 
5
,
 
a
n
d
 
6
,
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
n
l
y
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
i
n
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
A
:
 
J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
 
B
a
r
t
h
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
A
 
i
s
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 

1
8

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 

1
9

 
 
B
o
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
J
o
n
a
t
h
a
n
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
 
B
a
r
t
h
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
8
0
 

2
0

 
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
L
i
v
i
n
g
s
t
o
n
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
i
n
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
5
4
3
,
8
0
0
.
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 

2
2

 
 
G
r
a
y
m
o
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
b
a
n
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 

2
3

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.

2
4

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

1

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
B
:
 
C
h
a
d
 
M
.
 
S
t
e
i
d
i
n
g
e
r
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
B
 
i
s
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 

5

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 

6

 
 
B
o
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
C
h
a
d
 
M
.
 
S
t
e
i
d
i
n
g
e
r
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
2
5
 

7

 
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
F
o
r
d
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
1
4
7
,
5
0
0
.
 
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
P
o
n
t
i
a
c
 
i
s
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
b
a
n
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

1
1

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
C
:
 
A
d
a
m
 
R
.
 
a
n
d
 
S
h
e
l
b
y
 
A
.
 

1
4

 
 
R
o
b
e
r
t
s
o
n
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
C
 
i
s
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 

1
6

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 

1
7

 
 
B
o
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
A
d
a
m
 
R
.
 
a
n
d
 
S
h
e
l
b
y
 
A
.
 
R
o
b
e
r
t
s
o
n
,
 
w
h
o
 
a
r
e
 

1
8

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
6
0
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
E
f
f
i
n
g
h
a
m
 

1
9

 
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
1
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
 

2
0

 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
M
i
d
 
B
a
n
k
 
&
 
T
r
u
s
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
b
a
n
k
 
f
o
r
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

2
3

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 48



1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
:
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

2

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
 
i
s
 
a
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
Q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 

4

 
 
L
o
a
n
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 

5

 
 
o
f
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

6

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
2
0
 

7

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 

9

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m
a
d
e
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
0

 
 
t
o
 
g
r
a
d
u
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

1
1

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
w
h
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
'
s
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 

1
2

 
 
C
a
m
p
u
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
D
o
w
n
e
r
s
 
G
r
o
v
e
.
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
m
a
y
 

1
3

 
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
o
n
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
a
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
f
u
n
d
,
 
a
s
 

1
5

 
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
s
o
l
d
 
i
n
 

1
7

 
 
o
n
e
 
o
r
 
m
o
r
e
 
f
i
x
e
d
-
r
a
t
e
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
b
y
 
R
B
C
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
 

1
8

 
 
L
L
C
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
p
l
e
d
g
e
 
o
f
 
1
0
0
 

1
9

 
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
f
u
n
d
e
d
 
f
r
o
m
 
B
o
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
5
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

2
1

 
 
n
e
w
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 

2
2

 
 
c
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
r
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
p
l
e
d
g
e
d
 

2
3

 
 
l
o
a
n
s
,
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
m
p
r
i
s
e
 
a
s
s
e
t
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

2
4

1
2

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
'
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
L
o
a
n
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
e
g
a
n
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
4
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
i
s
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 

3

 
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
b
o
t
h
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
2
0
1
9
A
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
S
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 

4

 
 
2
0
1
9
B
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 

5

 
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
S
&
P
 
G
l
o
b
a
l
 
R
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
A
A
A
,
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
d
 

6

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
A
,
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
d
 

7

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
,
 

8

 
 
o
r
 
a
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
a
r
e
 
a
 

9

 
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
p
r
e
c
e
d
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 

1
0

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
l
y
i
n
g
 
u
s
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
,
 
a
r
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
p
a
y
e
r
s
,
 

1
3

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
 
a
n
 

1
4

 
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
$
2
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 

1
5

 
 
C
a
p
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
d
e
s
i
g
n
a
t
e
d
 
f
o
r
 

1
6

 
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
L
o
a
n
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

1
7

 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 

1
9

 
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
H
i
g
h
e
r
 
E
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 
A
c
t
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
A
c
t
,
 
e
a
c
h
 
a
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 

2
1

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
S
a
r
a
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
m
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
u
r
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
M
r
.
 
G
r
e
g

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 49



1
3

 
 
G
a
u
s
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
v
i
c
e
 
p
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
i
e
f
 

1

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
o
f
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 

2

 
 
a
n
d
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
a
u
s
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
G
R
E
G
 
G
A
U
S
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
G
r
e
g
 
G
a
u
s
 
f
r
o
m
 

5

 
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 

6

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
g
o
-
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
b
a
c
k
 
2
0
1
4
,
 
2
0
1
5
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
$
5
 

9

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
m
o
r
e
 
o
f
 
o
r
d
e
r
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
n
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 

1
0

 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
g
o
o
d
 
t
h
i
n
g
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
a
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
1
0
0
 
b
a
s
i
s
 

1
2

 
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
,
 
1
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
n
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
 
i
n
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
G
r
a
n
t
 
P
l
u
s
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
z
e
r
o
 
f
e
e
s
 

1
4

 
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 
4
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
a
r
e
 
v
e
r
y
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
m
p
a
r
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 

1
6

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
v
e
r
y
 
w
e
l
l
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
;
 
s
a
v
e
s
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
m
o
n
e
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
g
o
a
l
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
d
a
y
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

2
0

 
 
a
r
e
 
p
a
i
d
 
o
f
f
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
r
o
w
 
t
h
e
m
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
n
e
e
d
-
b
a
s
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
s
c
h
o
l
a
r
s
h
i
p
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 
k
i
n
d
 
o
f
 
a
 

2
2

 
 
w
i
n
-
w
i
n
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
a
n
d

2
4

1
4

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 

2

 
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
,
 
R
i
c
h
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
3
,
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 

8

 
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
9
9
,
 
D
u
P
a
g
e
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
3
 
i
s
 
a
 
L
o
c
a
l
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

1
0

 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 

1
1

 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 

1
2

 
 
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
9
9
,
 
D
u
P
a
g
e
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
D
o
w
n
e
r
s
 

1
3

 
 
 
G
r
o
v
e
,
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
6
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 

1
5

 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
a
l
t
e
r
i
n
g
,
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
p
a
i
r
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
8

 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
d
o
o
r
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
9

 
 
e
n
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
n
g
 

2
0

 
 
s
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
i
n
g
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
A
c
t
,
 
r
e
n
o
v
a
t
i
n
g
 

2
2

 
 
c
l
a
s
s
r
o
o
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
l
a
b
s
,
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
i
n
g
 
a
i
r
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
i
n
g
 
i
n
 

2
3

 
 
a
l
l
 
c
l
a
s
s
r
o
o
m
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 50



1
5

 
 
o
u
t
d
o
o
r
 
c
o
u
r
t
y
a
r
d
s
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
i
n
d
o
o
r
 
l
e
a
r
n
i
n
g
 

1

 
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
 

3

 
 
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
'
s
 
$
1
3
6
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
M
a
s
t
e
r
 

4

 
 
 
F
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
P
l
a
n
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

6

 
 
b
e
a
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
a
t
 
a
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

7

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
l
y
 
o
f
f
e
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
R
a
y
m
o
n
d
 
J
a
m
e
s
 
&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
 
b
a
s
e
d
 

8

 
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
'
s
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
d
e
b
t
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
A
A
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
.
 

9

 
 
T
h
e
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
S
&
P
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
f
f
i
r
m
 
i
t
s
 
A
A
 

1
0

 
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 

1
1

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

1
3

 
 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
4
:
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
U
n
i
t
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 

1
6

 
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
9
5
,
 
L
a
k
e
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
4
 
i
s
 
a
 
L
o
c
a
l
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

1
8

 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 

1
9

 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
U
n
i
t
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 

2
0

 
 
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
9
5
,
 
L
a
k
e
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
L
a
k
e
 

2
1

 
 
 
Z
u
r
i
c
h
,
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
4
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

2
3

 
 
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
i
n

2
4

1
6

 
 
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
s
i
t
e
s
;
 

1

 
 
 
a
l
t
e
r
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
p
a
i
r
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 

2

 
 
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
s
c
h
o
o
l
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
;
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
a
 

3

 
 
 
s
c
h
o
o
l
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
a
y
 
W
h
i
t
n
e
y
 

4

 
 
 
E
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
r
y
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
;
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
a
 
l
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
a
b
o
v
e
-
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
c
a
f
e
t
e
r
i
a
 
a
s
 

6

 
 
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
t
h
 
P
a
i
n
e
 
E
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
r
y
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 

7

 
 
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
 

9

 
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
'
s
 
$
7
7
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 

1
0

 
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

1
2

 
 
b
e
a
r
 
a
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
l
y
 

1
3

 
 
o
f
f
e
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
R
a
y
m
o
n
d
 
J
a
m
e
s
 
&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
'
s
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
d
e
b
t
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
A
A
A
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
.
 
 
S
&
P
 

1
5

 
 
a
f
f
i
r
m
e
d
 
i
t
s
 
A
A
A
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

1
7

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
:
 
1
1
 
M
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
A
c
r
e
s
,
 
L
L
C
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
5
 
i
s
 
a
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
C
l
e
a
n
 

2
1

 
 
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
,
 
o
r
 
P
A
C
E
,
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

2
2

 
 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
i
m
e
 
o
f
 
o
n
e
 
o
r
 
m
o
r
e
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 

2
3

 
 
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
s
u
b
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
1
1

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 51



1
7

 
 
 
M
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
A
c
r
e
s
,
 
L
L
C
,
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
g
g
r
e
g
a
t
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 

1

 
 
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
1
0
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
o
f
 
3
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
s
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
s
u
b
s
t
a
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
f
o
r
m
 
o
f
 
M
a
s
t
e
r
 
I
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
f
o
r
m
 
o
f
 
I
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
b
y
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
1
1
 

5

 
 
M
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
A
c
r
e
s
,
 
L
L
C
,
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
r
,
 
m
a
y
 
o
b
t
a
i
n
 

6

 
 
a
n
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
s
t
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
 
l
i
m
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
d
e
l
e
g
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
s
,
 
a
s
 
d
e
f
i
n
e
d
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
 
s
u
c
h
 

1
0

 
 
I
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
y
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 

1
1

 
 
h
e
r
e
a
f
t
e
r
.
 
 
P
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
o
f
 
e
a
c
h
 
I
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 

1
2

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
l
o
a
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
o
w
n
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
c
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 

1
3

 
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
 
e
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
c
y
,
 
r
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 

1
4

 
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
c
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 

1
5

 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
 

1
7

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 

1
8

 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
w
a
s
 
a
d
o
p
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
F
e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

2
0

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
6
:
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

2
3

 
 
D
e
 
L
a
 
S
a
l
l
e
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
s
.

2
4

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
6
 
i
s
 
a
n
 
E
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
F
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 

1

 
 
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
 

2

 
 
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
D
e
 
L
a
 
S
a
l
l
e
 

3

 
 
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
1
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 

5

 
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
 
B
o
n
d
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 

6

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
D
e
 
L
a
 
S
a
l
l
e
 

7

 
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
a
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
W
i
n
t
r
u
s
t
 
B
a
n
k
,
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
t
o
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
p
a
y
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 

9

 
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
H
u
n
t
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
H
u
n
t
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 

1
1

 
 
B
a
n
k
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
B
o
n
d
 
b
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
a
 

1
2

 
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
t
e
r
m
 
o
f
 
7
 

1
3

 
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
4

 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
a
t
e
 
a
 
m
o
d
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
 
d
a
t
e
 

1
5

 
 
t
o
 
J
u
n
e
 
1
s
t
,
 
2
0
4
4
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

1
7

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
7
:
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
U
p
d
a
t
e
s
 

2
0

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
7
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 

2
2

 
 
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
B
o
n
d
 
H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 
t
o
 

2
3

 
 
 
c
l
a
r
i
f
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
w
i
t
h

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 52



1
9

 
 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 

1

 
 
 
l
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
s
u
c
h
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
s
u
c
h
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
,
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
y
 
f
r
a
m
e
w
o
r
k
 

4

 
 
 
p
e
r
t
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
s
u
c
h
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
s
 
c
l
a
r
i
f
y
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
r
o
l
e
 
i
n
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 

7

 
 
b
o
n
d
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
l
e
g
a
c
y
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 

8

 
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
 
l
o
n
g
e
r
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
.
 
 
W
e
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
 

9

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
e
l
p
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
p
a
s
t
 

1
0

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
o
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

1
2

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
8
:
 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
U
p
d
a
t
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
S
c
o
p
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
8
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 

1
7

 
 
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
y
 

1
8

 
 
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
i
n
 

1
9

 
 
 
p
r
a
c
t
i
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
s
t
r
e
a
m
l
i
n
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
a
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
T
a
x
-
E
x
e
m
p
t
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
T
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 

2
2

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
a
n
d
 

2
3

 
 
b
r
o
a
d
e
n
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
o
p
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e

2
4

2
0

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
a
y
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
b
u
t
 
n
o
t
 

2

 
 
l
i
m
i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
P
A
C
E
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
r
o
a
d
e
n
s
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
s
c
o
p
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
A
l
t
e
r
n
a
t
i
v
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 

5

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
 

6

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
,
 
o
r
 
S
R
F
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 

7

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
i
c
a
l
 
p
r
a
c
t
i
c
e
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 

9

 
 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 

1
4

 
 
i
t
e
m
s
:
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
1
A
,
 
1
B
,
 
1
C
,
 
2
,
 
3
,
 
4
,
 
5
,
 
6
,
 
7
,
 
a
n
d
 
8
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

2
2

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 53



2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
E
R
U
G
I
N
I
:
 
 
L
a
d
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
e
n
t
l
e
m
e
n
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
m
y
 

2
1

 
 
p
l
e
a
s
u
r
e
 
t
o
 
s
t
a
n
d
 
h
e
r
e
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 

2
2

 
 
f
o
r
m
a
l
l
y
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
a
s
 
y
o
u
r
 
n
e
w
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 

2
3

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
,
 
s
o
 
y
o
u
 
o
n
l
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
h
e
a
r
 
m
y
 
v
o
i
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
a

2
4

2
2

 
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
m
o
r
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 

2

 
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
t
o
 
a
 
c
l
o
s
e
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
 
a
 

3

 
 
r
e
c
a
p
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
s
 
l
o
o
k
e
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
i
n
 

4

 
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
9
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
s
o
m
e
 
i
n
s
i
g
h
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 

5

 
 
c
a
n
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
0
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
a
n
 

7

 
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
m
y
 
b
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
i
n
 

8

 
 
h
i
s
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
'
s
 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
 

9

 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
 
t
o
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
m
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
t
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
i
n
d
u
s
t
r
y
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
I
 
f
i
n
d
 
s
o
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
a
b
o
u
t
 

1
2

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
i
s
 
i
t
s
 
c
o
l
l
e
g
i
a
l
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
,
 
h
o
w
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
p
a
r
t
i
e
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
o
r
k
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
s
 
a
 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 
g
o
a
l
.
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
I
 
l
o
v
e
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
c
a
n
 

1
5

 
 
l
o
o
k
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
e
 

1
6

 
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
h
e
l
p
e
d
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 

1
7

 
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
m
o
s
t
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 

1
9

 
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
a
r
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
t
o
 
n
o
n
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
m
 

2
0

 
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
j
u
s
t
 
c
o
l
l
e
a
g
u
e
s
;
 
I
'
m
 
h
o
n
o
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
m
 

2
1

 
 
m
y
 
f
r
i
e
n
d
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
i
l
e
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
l
i
v
e
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
l
d
,
 

2
3

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
t
o
 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 
t
o
 
C
o
l
o
r
a
d
o
,
 
I
'
m
 
g
l
a
d
 
t
h
a
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 54



2
3

 
 
I
'
v
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
 
c
o
m
e
 
h
o
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
a
n
 
i
n
d
u
s
t
r
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 

1

 
 
c
a
r
e
 
d
e
e
p
l
y
 
a
b
o
u
t
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
i
c
a
l
l
y
,
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

3

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
r
n
e
r
s
t
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 

4

 
 
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
s
e
l
f
-
s
u
s
t
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 

5

 
 
2
0
1
9
 
w
a
s
 
n
o
 
e
x
c
e
p
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
 
p
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
s
:
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
 
d
a
t
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
j
u
s
t
 

8

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
$
9
3
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
o
n
 

9

 
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
h
a
s
 

1
0

 
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
 
o
f
 
c
l
o
s
e
 
t
o
 
$
8
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
1

 
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
$
1
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
J
u
n
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
m
a
n
y
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
e
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
w
a
k
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
t
y
 
s
u
r
r
o
u
n
d
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
c
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
7
,
 

1
6

 
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
-
-
 
v
e
r
y
 
g
o
o
d
 

1
8

 
 
n
e
w
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
0
 

1
9

 
 
p
i
p
e
l
i
n
e
 
i
s
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
v
i
s
i
b
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
m
i
s
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
t
 

2
0

 
 
l
e
a
s
t
 
t
w
o
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
s
 
a
r
e
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
J
u
n
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
u
p
o
n
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
9
'
s
 

2
3

 
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
 
t
r
a
c
k
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
i
n

2
4

2
4

 
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
i
n
 
2
0
2
0
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
w
h
i
l
e
 

1

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 
c
a
r
e
 
r
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 

2

 
 
a
r
e
 
n
a
v
i
g
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
n
n
e
r
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
m
a
r
g
i
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
t
h
i
n
k
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
h
a
l
l
e
n
g
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
c
o
m
e
 
a
l
o
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
c
o
n
s
o
l
i
d
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
o
v
e
r
a
l
l
 
o
u
t
l
o
o
k
 
o
f
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
i
n
d
u
s
t
r
y
 
i
s
 
s
t
a
b
l
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
p
u
r
s
u
i
n
g
 
l
e
a
d
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
 

8

 
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
s
:
 
T
h
e
 
M
e
d
i
u
m
 
T
e
r
m
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 

9

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
O
w
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
a
n
d
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
.
 
 
W
e
 

1
0

 
 
a
r
e
 
h
o
p
e
f
u
l
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
0
 
u
n
d
e
r
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 

1
2

 
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 

1
3

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
l
y
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
o
 
e
n
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
,
 

1
7

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
n
t
o
r
s
h
i
p
 
o
f
 
P
a
m
,
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
s
 

1
8

 
 
i
n
 
o
u
r
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
u
n
i
v
e
r
s
e
 
o
f
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
t
e
a
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
-
s
u
i
t
e
 

2
0

 
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
m
a
k
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
l
o
o
k
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

2
2

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
c
e
l
l
e
n
t
 
c
l
i
e
n
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
,
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
i
s
m
,
 
e
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
c
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
a
r
e
n
c
y
 
t
h
a
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 55



2
5

 
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
l
e
g
a
c
y
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
Y
A
R
T
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
.
 
 
M
y
 
n
a
m
e
 
i
s
 

4

 
 
C
h
a
r
l
e
s
 
M
y
a
r
t
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
t
h
e
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
L
o
a
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

7

 
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 

8

 
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
l
i
n
e
 
a
n
d
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
e
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
C
o
n
s
o
l
i
d
a
t
i
o
n
 

9

 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
i
p
e
l
i
n
e
 
r
e
a
l
 
q
u
i
c
k
.
 
 
P
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
y
o
u
 

1
0

 
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
k
i
n
d
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
d
r
a
w
n
 
a
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
d
e
c
l
i
n
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
a
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
t
r
a
t
e
g
i
c
 

1
3

 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
1
7
 
b
a
n
k
s
 

1
5

 
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
e
d
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
h
a
v
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 

1
6

 
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
1
6
t
h
 
w
a
s
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
,
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
1
7
t
h
,
 
w
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
d
a
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
M
a
y
 
e
d
i
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
b
a
n
k
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 

1
9

 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
i
n
g
 
o
u
r
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 

2
0

 
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
m
e
n
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 

2
2

 
 
t
a
b
,
 
a
 
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
p
r
e
-
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
d
e
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
$
2
2
5
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
W
e
 

2
3

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
f
o
u
r
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s

2
4

2
6

 
 
o
f
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
$
1
.
9
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
s
t
a
g
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
t
w
o
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
e
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 

2

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
w
o
 
d
e
a
l
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
d
r
a
w
n
 
f
r
o
m
 

4

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
:
 
o
n
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
,
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
s
i
g
n
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
s
t
a
r
t
-
u
p
 

6

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
l
i
n
e
 
o
f
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
.
 

7

 
 
T
h
e
 
A
g
 
d
e
a
l
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
w
a
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
d
e
b
t
 

8

 
 
f
o
r
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
t
 
c
h
o
s
e
,
 
i
n
s
t
e
a
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
,
 
w
e
n
t
 
a
l
o
n
g
 

9

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
d
e
c
l
i
n
e
d
 
a
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
f
r
o
m
 

1
1

 
 
a
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
r
 
h
a
d
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
o
n
 
m
o
r
e
 
d
e
b
t
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
'
s
 
v
a
l
u
e
.
 
 
H
e
 
d
i
d
 
n
o
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
s
u
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
 
c
a
s
h
 
f
l
o
w
 
t
o
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
d
e
b
t
.
 

1
4

 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
o
o
k
 
a
 
p
a
s
s
 
o
n
 
a
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
g
o
l
f
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
d
e
a
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
h
a
d
 
i
n
s
u
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
 
c
a
s
h
 
f
l
o
w
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
s
t
r
a
t
e
g
i
c
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
7

 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
s
:
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
d
 
p
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 

1
8

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
T
r
e
a
s
u
r
e
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 

1
9

 
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
i
n
g
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
c
o
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
h
a
t

2
0

 
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
l
i
n
e
.

2
1

 
 
D
e
p
u
t
y
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
S
t
u
c
k
e
y
'
s
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
e
n
u
r
e

2
2

 
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
T
r
e
a
s
u
r
e
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
e
l
p
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
a
t
e
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
s
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 56



2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
e
l
d
 

1

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
U
.
S
.
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
e
 

2

 
 
E
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 

3

 
 
l
e
v
e
r
a
g
i
n
g
 
r
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
l
o
a
n
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
a
c
r
o
s
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 

5

 
 
b
u
s
-
 
-
-
 
i
n
c
u
b
a
t
o
r
s
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 

6

 
 
e
n
t
r
e
p
r
e
n
e
u
r
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
e
x
p
l
o
r
i
n
g
 
a
 

8

 
 
c
o
l
l
a
b
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
T
r
a
n
s
i
t
 

9

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
a
 
$
1
.
6
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
,
 

1
0

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
T
r
a
n
s
i
t
 

1
1

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
i
n
 

1
2

 
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
i
n
g
 
a
 
l
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
b
o
n
d
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 

1
3

 
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
s
 
a
p
p
l
y
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 

1
4

 
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
i
n
 

1
6

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
m
i
n
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
o
m
a
n
-
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
w
a
t
e
r
/
c
l
e
a
n
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
h
a
s
 

1
8

 
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
d
 
p
a
t
e
n
t
e
d
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
q
u
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
f
a
r
m
 
w
a
s
t
e
 
a
n
d
 

1
9

 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
i
n
g
 
i
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
c
l
e
a
n
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
.
 
 
I
t
 
i
n
t
e
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
u
i
l
d
 

2
0

 
 
a
 
m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
c
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

2
2

 
 
h
a
s
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
O
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
Z
o
n
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
O
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
Z
o
n
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
d
e
p
r
e
s
s
e
d
 
a
r
e
a
s

2
4

2
8

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
y
 
f
o
r
 
n
e
w
 
e
q
u
i
t
y
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 

1

 
 
p
r
e
f
e
r
e
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
I
R
S
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
s
 

2

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 

3

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
,
 
C
-
P
A
C
E
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
i
s
 
a
n
 

4

 
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
r
o
l
e
 
i
n
 
f
o
s
t
e
r
i
n
g
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
j
o
b
 
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
s
o
u
g
h
t
 
t
o
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 
O
-
Z
o
n
e
 
f
u
n
d
 

7

 
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
c
a
n
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
 
w
i
t
h
 

8

 
 
e
q
u
i
t
y
 
p
i
e
c
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
O
-
Z
o
n
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
,
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
s
 

9

 
 
a
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
o
v
e
r
a
l
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
s
t
a
c
k
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
t
h
a
n
k
-
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
M
a
l
c
o
l
m
 
S
i
m
m
o
n
s
,
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
s
 

1
2

 
 
d
i
l
i
g
e
n
t
l
y
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

1
3

 
 
b
y
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
i
g
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
r
e
a
c
h
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
a
c
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

1
4

 
 
f
u
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
k
e
e
p
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
p
p
r
i
s
e
d
 
o
n
 

1
5

 
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
u
l
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
O
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
Z
o
n
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
p
i
e
c
e
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
a
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
m
a
n
a
g
i
n
g
 
r
i
s
k
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
l
i
n
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 

2
0

 
 
G
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
c
o
n
t
e
x
t
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
s
 
a
 

2
1

 
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
s
e
r
v
e
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
e
a
r
l
y
 

2
2

 
 
w
a
r
n
i
n
g
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
t
o
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
y
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
r
i
s
k
 

2
3

 
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
t
w
o
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
s
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 57



2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
i
s
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
i
n
g
,
 

1

 
 
u
p
d
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
t
o
 

2

 
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
,
 
p
r
o
c
e
d
u
r
e
s
,
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
t
a
t
e
 

3

 
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
r
u
l
e
s
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
l
y
 
e
n
s
u
r
e
 

4

 
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
,
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
a
r
e
n
c
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
O
N
N
E
T
T
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.
 

7

 
 
M
y
 
n
a
m
e
 
i
s
 
L
i
s
a
 
B
o
n
n
e
t
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
m
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
e
r
e
 

8

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
a
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
R
F
 
2
0
1
9
 

9

 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
b
r
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
t
h
 
t
h
r
e
e
 

1
0

 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
e
x
p
l
o
r
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
 

1
1

 
 
t
o
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
9
t
h
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

1
3

 
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
l
y
 
p
r
i
c
e
d
 
i
t
s
 
S
t
a
t
e
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
F
u
n
d
s
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
9
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
t
 
a
 
p
r
e
m
i
u
m
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
3
r
d
 
a
n
d
 
4
t
h
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
p
r
i
l
 

1
7

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
8

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
1
6
t
h
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
R
F
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
B
o
n
d
s
 

2
0

 
 
h
a
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
$
5
3
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
m
u
c
h
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
t
o
 
l
o
a
n
 

2
2

 
 
t
o
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 
 
A
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
t
h
e
 
I
E
P
A
 
h
a
s
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 
$
4
1
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n

2
4

3
0

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
R
F
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 
 
R
a
m
p
i
n
g
 

1

 
 
u
p
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 

2

 
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
q
u
a
l
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
w
e
 
a
l
l
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
 
o
n
 
b
u
t
 

3

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
s
t
i
m
u
l
a
t
e
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
j
o
b
s
 

4

 
 
a
c
r
o
s
s
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
w
a
r
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 

6

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
 
a
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
P
A
,
 
h
a
s
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
l
y
 

7

 
 
l
e
v
e
r
a
g
e
d
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
$
1
.
9
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
w
a
t
e
r
 

8

 
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
S
R
F
 

9

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
h
a
s
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
l
y
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
d
r
a
w
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
c
h
a
r
t
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
S
t
a
t
e
 

1
3

 
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 
i
s
s
u
e
r
 
v
o
l
u
m
e
,
 
t
o
 
j
u
s
t
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
w
o
r
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
i
s
 
d
o
i
n
g
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
c
o
l
u
m
n
:
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
i
t
s
 

1
6

 
 
i
n
c
e
p
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
2
0
0
0
-
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
1
9
8
9
,
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
S
R
F
 

1
7

 
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
r
a
n
k
e
d
 
1
3
t
h
 
i
n
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
l
e
v
e
r
a
g
i
n
g
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
d
o
l
l
a
r
s
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
w
a
t
e
r
 

1
9

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
2
0
1
3
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
,
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
h
i
r
d
 
i
n
 

2
2

 
 
r
a
n
k
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
i
s
s
u
i
n
g
 
l
e
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
R
F
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
2
0
1
6
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
w
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 58



3
1

 
 
c
o
u
n
t
r
y
 
o
f
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
l
e
v
e
r
a
g
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
S
R
F
,
 

1

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
-
-
 
s
p
e
a
k
s
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
f
o
r
 
u
s
 
a
s
 

2

 
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
g
r
a
n
t
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
o
p
t
i
m
i
z
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 

4

 
 
a
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
w
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
v
e
r
y
 

5

 
 
p
r
o
u
d
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 
e
v
e
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
,
 

7

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
m
e
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
$
2
.
3
 

8

 
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 

9

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
9
 
I
n
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
U
s
e
 
P
l
a
n
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
n
-
S
R
F
 
W
a
t
e
r
 

1
1

 
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
,
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
e
x
p
l
o
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
r
e
e
 

1
3

 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 

1
4

 
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
i
n
g
 
a
 

1
6

 
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
7

 
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
 
s
h
e
e
t
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
t
o
 

1
8

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
l
o
w
-
c
o
s
t
,
 
s
h
o
r
t
-
t
e
r
m
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
t
o
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
u
t
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 

1
9

 
 
f
o
r
 
e
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
r
e
p
a
i
r
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
 

2
0

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
-
p
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
c
o
s
t
 
i
n
c
u
r
r
e
d
 
p
r
i
o
r
 

2
1

 
 
t
o
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
w
a
r
d
e
d
 
a
n
 
S
R
F
 
l
o
a
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
m
o
d
e
l
e
d
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
P
A
 
S
R
F
 
L
o
a
n
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
w
h
e
r
e
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p

2
4

3
2

 
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
l
o
n
e
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
o
r
d
i
n
a
n
c
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

1

 
 
a
d
o
p
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 

2

 
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
f
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
o
u
r
 

3

 
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
c
o
s
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
o
u
r
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 

4

 
 
t
o
 
r
e
v
o
l
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
g
r
o
w
 
a
t
 
a
 
s
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
l
e
 
r
a
t
e
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

6

 
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
a
i
n
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
A
c
t
,
 
o
r
 
W
I
F
I
A
,
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

9

 
 
g
o
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
W
I
F
I
A
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 

1
0

 
 
i
n
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
w
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
b
y
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 

1
1

 
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
,
 
l
o
w
-
c
o
s
t
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
 

1
2

 
 
c
u
s
t
o
m
i
z
e
d
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
t
o
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
w
o
r
t
h
y
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
w
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 

1
3

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
o
f
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
c
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
I
F
I
A
 
l
o
a
n
s
 
c
a
n
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
4
9
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 

1
5

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 

1
6

 
 
p
h
a
s
e
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
d
 
l
o
a
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
.
 
 
I
n
 
2
0
1
9
,
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
 

1
8

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
d
 
$
6
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
s
u
b
s
i
d
y
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

1
9

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
E
P
A
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 

2
0

 
 
$
6
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 

2
1

 
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
w
i
d
e
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
.
S
.
 
E
P
A
 
h
a
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
a
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
 
o
f
 

2
3

 
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
5
t
h
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 59



3
3

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
e
d
 
p
a
r
t
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
s
u
b
m
i
t
 
a
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
b
y
 

1

 
 
J
u
l
y
 
5
t
h
,
 
2
0
1
9
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 

2

 
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
t
 
m
a
d
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
7
 
o
r
 

3

 
 
2
0
1
8
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
l
e
a
d
e
r
s
h
i
p
 

5

 
 
r
o
l
e
 
i
n
 
e
x
p
l
o
r
i
n
g
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

6

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
s
t
 
m
e
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
p
r
i
o
r
i
t
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
9
 

7

 
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
r
o
u
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
 
l
o
a
n
 

8

 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
W
I
F
I
A
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
h
a
d
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
w
o
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
u
t
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 

1
1

 
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
n
e
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
a
r
 
t
e
r
m
.
 

1
2

 
 
O
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
 

1
3

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
v
e
y
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
s
t
o
r
m
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

1
4

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
 
-
-
 
a
 
c
o
n
v
e
y
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
s
t
o
r
m
 

1
5

 
 
w
a
t
e
r
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
s
o
u
r
c
e
 
o
f
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
7

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
d
i
s
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
o
n
 

1
8

 
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
s
.
 
 
B
o
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
g
o
o
d
 

1
9

 
 
c
a
n
d
i
d
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
d
v
a
n
t
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
W
I
F
I
A
 
l
o
a
n
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
h
i
r
d
 
a
r
e
a
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
e
x
p
l
o
r
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
s
 

2
2

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
L
o
a
n
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
 
t
o
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
 
t
h
e
 
v
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f

2
4

3
4

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
s
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
w
a
t
e
r
 

1

 
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 

2

 
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
y
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
s
t
e
p
s
,
 
r
o
l
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
t
i
m
e
l
i
n
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
l
o
a
n
 

4

 
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
b
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y
 

6

 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
U
C
K
E
Y
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
,
 
f
o
r
 

9

 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
2
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
 

1
0

 
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
m
e
m
o
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
f
i
n
d
 
o
n
 
T
a
b
 
1
2
 
a
n
d
 
f
r
o
-
 
-
-
 

1
1

 
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 
 
T
a
b
 
1
2
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
e
m
o
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
2

 
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 

1
3

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
i
s
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
5

 
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
 
P
r
i
t
z
k
e
r
'
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
2
0
1
9
-
0
1
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

1
6

 
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
s
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
p
a
s
t
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
m
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
i
n
 

1
9

 
 
b
o
t
h
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
.
 
 
U
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

2
0

 
 
E
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
s
e
e
 
a
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
a
 
r
e
m
i
n
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

2
2

 
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
i
s
 
a
 
C
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 

2
3

 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
s
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
t
y
p
e
s
 
o
f
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 
t
o

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 60



3
5

 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
m
a
n
d
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
l
a
w
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
c
t
,
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
a
l
l
o
w
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
i
l
l
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
c
o
s
t
s
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
'
1
8
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
a
s
 

5

 
 
c
h
a
r
g
e
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
2
3
4
,
0
0
0
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 

6

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
S
M
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
o
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 

8

 
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 

9

 
 
s
o
r
r
y
 
-
-
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
.
 
 
R
S
M
 
i
s
 

1
0

 
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
s
i
x
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
b
e
g
a
n
 

1
1

 
 
o
n
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
6
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
R
S
M
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
a
s
 
h
e
l
d
 
o
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
1
2
t
h
,
 
2
0
1
9
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
m
a
r
k
e
d
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
f
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 

1
5

 
 
'
1
9
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
'
1
9
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

1
6

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

1
7

 
 
t
w
o
-
y
e
a
r
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

1
9

 
 
U
p
d
a
t
e
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 
r
e
m
i
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
C
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 

2
0

 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
o
r
 
C
M
S
,
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
e
n
t
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
t
o
 
a
n
 
i
n
t
e
r
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 

2
2

 
 
f
o
r
 
C
M
S
 
t
o
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
f
o
r
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

2
4

3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
o
n
 
t
r
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
o
f
 
a
 
t
w
o
-
y
e
a
r
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
l
a
n
 
f
o
r
 
2
0
1
9
.
 
 
S
o
 
f
a
r
,
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
m
o
s
t
l
y
 
o
b
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

3

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
,
 
o
n
e
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

4

 
 
w
a
s
 
f
o
r
 
n
o
t
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
1
5
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m
e
 

5

 
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
f
o
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
C
M
S
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 

8

 
 
h
e
l
p
f
u
l
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
o
o
l
.
 
 
W
e
 
f
i
n
d
 
i
t
 
v
e
r
y
 
h
e
l
p
f
u
l
 
f
o
r
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
e
n
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
d
u
r
e
s
 
a
r
e
 

1
1

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
b
e
s
t
 
p
r
a
c
t
i
c
e
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
e
n
 

1
2

 
 
c
h
a
r
g
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
f
i
n
d
s
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
m
 
s
o
 
h
e
l
p
f
u
l
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
M
S
 
c
h
o
s
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
s
o
,
 
w
e
 

1
4

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
p
a
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
b
o
d
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
U
C
K
E
Y
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
3
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
T
a
l
e
n
t
 
R
e
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
,
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
A
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 

1
9

 
 
U
p
d
a
t
e
.
 
 
Y
o
u
'
l
l
 
f
i
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
o
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
T
a
b
 
1
3
,
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
d
 
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
a
l
o
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
p
p
e
n
d
i
x
 
A
 

2
1

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
o
r
g
.
 
c
h
a
r
t
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
e
m
o
 
g
a
v
e
 
y
o
u
 
b
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
o
n
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
a
n
y
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 61



3
7

 
 
i
s
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
,
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
q
u
i
r
e
 
t
a
l
e
n
t
 

1

 
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
i
t
i
e
s
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
 
e
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
R
u
t
a
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
 
-
-
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
B
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
t
 

5

 
 
f
a
m
i
l
i
a
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
 
-
-
 
S
t
a
t
e
'
s
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 

6

 
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
f
i
n
d
 
b
a
c
k
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
'
l
l
 
f
i
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
R
u
t
a
n
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 

7

 
 
R
e
p
u
b
l
i
c
a
n
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
S
u
p
r
e
m
e
 
C
o
u
r
t
 
c
a
s
e
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

8

 
 
h
e
l
d
,
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
-
-
 

9

 
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
l
o
w
-
l
e
v
e
l
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 

1
0

 
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
o
l
i
t
i
c
a
l
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
c
o
u
r
t
 
c
a
s
e
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
d
 
t
w
o
 

1
2

 
 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
,
 
o
n
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
y
p
e
 
w
a
s
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
-
-
 

1
3

 
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
p
o
l
i
t
i
c
a
l
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
l
i
t
i
c
a
l
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
r
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
t
o
 

1
5

 
 
b
e
 
j
u
d
g
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
,
 

1
6

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
p
a
r
t
y
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
u
r
t
 
c
a
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 

1
8

 
 
l
i
t
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
h
a
s
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
e
d
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
-
-
 
a
 

1
9

 
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
i
z
e
d
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
i
n
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
m
o
t
e
 
f
a
i
r
,
 

2
0

 
 
o
b
j
e
c
t
i
v
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
p
o
l
i
t
i
c
a
l
 
b
y
 
a
n
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 

2
1

 
 
c
a
n
d
i
d
a
t
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
a
 

2
3

 
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 
b
o
d
y
 
p
o
l
i
t
i
c
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
 
c
o
v
e
r
e
d

2
4

3
8

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
P
e
r
s
o
n
n
e
l
 
C
o
d
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
'
s
 
R
u
t
a
n
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 

1

 
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
p
p
l
y
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

2

 
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
l
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
l
y
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
;
 
t
h
e
r
e
f
o
r
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 

4

 
 
a
d
o
p
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
T
a
l
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
R
e
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
,
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
A
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
f
r
a
m
e
w
o
r
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
b
r
o
a
d
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
l
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
b
j
e
c
t
i
v
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
R
u
t
a
n
 

7

 
 
f
r
a
m
e
w
o
r
k
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
A
p
p
e
n
d
i
x
 
A
,
 
y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 
d
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.
 
 
I
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 

1
1

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
t
w
o
-
p
r
o
n
g
e
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
i
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
r
o
m
 

1
2

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
4

 
 
a
l
s
o
 
f
i
n
d
 
a
n
 
o
r
g
.
 
c
h
a
r
t
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
s
p
e
a
k
i
n
g
,
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
t
o
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 

1
7

 
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
.
 
 
P
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
o
 
n
o
t
,
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
 

1
8

 
 
s
p
e
a
k
i
n
g
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
.
 
 
N
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
-
-
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
h
e
 
f
a
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

2
0

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
 
a
t
-
w
i
l
l
 

2
1

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
b
r
i
n
g
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
a
l
e
n
t
e
d
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
b
u
t
 
a
l
s
o

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 62



3
9

 
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
i
n
g
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
a
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 

2

 
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
f
i
n
i
n
g
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
 
a
 

3

 
 
c
o
m
p
r
e
h
e
n
s
i
v
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
 
t
o
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
i
n
g
 

4

 
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 

6

 
 
b
u
t
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
l
i
m
i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
e
n
t
a
l
 
l
e
a
v
e
,
 
t
u
i
t
i
o
n
 

7

 
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
m
e
n
t
,
 
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
i
o
n
 
l
e
a
v
e
,
 
b
e
r
e
a
v
e
m
e
n
t
 
l
e
a
v
e
,
 

8

 
 
w
e
l
l
n
e
s
s
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
s
 
a
n
-
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
W
e
l
l
n
e
s
s
 

9

 
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
S
a
r
a
h
 
M
a
n
k
o
w
s
k
i
 

1
1

 
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
t
r
e
m
e
n
d
o
u
s
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
 
s
h
e
 
p
u
t
 
i
n
 
t
o
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
 
a
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 

1
5

 
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
i
f
 
I
 
m
a
y
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 

1
7

 
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
T
a
l
e
n
t
 
R
e
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
,
 

1
8

 
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
A
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
e
l
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
 

1
9

 
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
l
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
a
n
c
e
 

2
0

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
I
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
g
o
 

2
1

 
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
s
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
t
i
r
e
 

2
2

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
i
n
 
f
r
o
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
e
n
c
e
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
s
 
a
 
b
o
d
y
 
p
o
l
i
t
i
c
 
a
n
d

2
4

4
0

 
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
e
,
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
t
w
o
 
e
l
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
l
o
o
m
 

1

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
i
n
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
t
i
m
e
-
c
o
n
s
u
m
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.
 

3

 
 
A
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
,
 

4

 
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
f
u
l
l
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
w
i
d
e
 
a
n
d
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
w
i
d
e
 
R
u
t
a
n
 

6

 
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
U
.
S
.
 
S
u
p
r
e
m
e
 
C
o
u
r
t
 
R
u
t
a
n
 
c
a
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 

7

 
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
t
o
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 
i
n
 
a
 
R
u
t
a
n
-
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
w
h
e
n
 

8

 
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
o
u
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
J
a
c
o
b
.
 
 
I
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 

1
0

 
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
a
t
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
s
,
 
I
 
k
n
e
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 

1
3

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
i
n
g
 
i
t
 
t
w
i
c
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

1
4

 
 
t
w
o
 
e
l
e
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
R
u
t
a
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
h
i
r
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 
a
r
e
 
s
u
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
l
y
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
,
 

1
6

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
n
y
b
o
d
y
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
e
n
 
d
e
e
p
l
y
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
7

 
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
,
 
t
o
 
d
r
i
v
e
 
h
o
m
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
k
e
 

1
8

 
 
s
u
r
e
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
t
i
m
e
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
m
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
t
a
k
e
s
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
m
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
U
C
K
E
Y
:
 
 
W
e
l
l
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
f
o
r
 

2
2

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o
 
l
i
s
t
e
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
t
w
o
 
v
e
r
y
 
e
x
c
i
t
i
n
g
 

2
3

 
 
t
o
p
i
c
s
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 63



4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
J
a
c
o
b
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

3

 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 

4

 
 
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
3
0
,
 
2
0
1
9
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
n
 
e
r
r
o
r
 
o
n
 
-
-
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
 
w
h
e
n
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
s
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
p
r
i
n
t
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
,
 
b
u
t
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
r
e
d
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
l
a
b
e
l
e
d
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
-
-
 

9

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 
a
r
e
 
a
s
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
s
:
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 

1
2

 
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
e
q
u
a
l
s
 
$
3
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
a
r
e
 
$
2
8
2
,
0
0
0
,
 

1
3

 
 
o
r
 
8
.
7
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
,
 
t
h
a
n
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 

1
4

 
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
i
l
y
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
e
q
u
a
l
s
 
$
3
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
r
e
 
$
5
3
1
,
0
0
0
,
 
o
r
 
1
2
.
8
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 

1
8

 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
d
r
i
v
e
n
 
b
y
 
b
e
l
o
w
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
s
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
n
 

1
9

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
v
a
c
a
n
c
i
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
$
2
6
2
,
0
0
0
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
$
4
1
,
0
0
0
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
a
n
 
o
u
r
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
2
2
1
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
I
n
 

2
3

 
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
o
f

2
4

4
2

 
 
$
3
7
6
,
0
0
0
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
$
3
7
,
0
0
0
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 

1

 
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
4
1
3
,
0
0
0
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

3

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 

4

 
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 

6

 
 
$
1
1
8
,
0
0
0
 
i
n
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
t
r
e
n
d
 
i
s
 

7

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

8

 
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
a
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
l
o
w
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

9

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
i
n
g
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
g
a
i
n
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
y
e
a
r
-
t
o
-
d
a
t
e
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
i
s
 

1
2

 
 
a
t
 
$
9
8
5
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
$
7
5
4
,
0
0
0
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 

1
3

 
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
9
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
w
a
s
 
c
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
v
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
y
e
a
r
s
 

1
5

 
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
i
c
a
l
 
d
a
t
a
.
 
 
G
o
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
6

 
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
t
o
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
f
o
r
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
0
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
r
e
d
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
,
 
y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
9

 
 
f
i
n
d
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
a
n
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
o
n
 

2
0

 
 
o
u
r
 
l
o
c
a
l
l
y
 
h
e
l
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
f
o
r
 
A
p
r
i
l
 

2
2

 
 
i
s
 
$
8
3
,
0
0
0
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
t
t
r
i
b
u
t
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 

2
3

 
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
-
t
h
a
n
-
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
o
u
r
 
n
e
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 64



4
3

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
n
e
t
 
l
o
s
s
 
i
s
 
a
t
 

2

 
 
$
6
9
,
0
0
0
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 

3

 
 
l
o
s
s
 
o
f
 
$
8
8
4
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 

4

 
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
-
t
h
a
n
-
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 

5

 
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
n
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
o
l
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
e
d
 
b
y
 

7

 
 
M
s
.
 
B
o
n
n
e
t
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 

8

 
 
F
u
n
d
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
B
o
n
d
 
w
a
s
 
o
n
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
1
6
t
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 

9

 
 
$
5
3
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
o
f
 
M
a
y
 
1
3
t
h
,
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 

1
1

 
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 
b
o
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
o
f
 
$
2
7
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 

1
3

 
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
3
8
 
n
e
w
 
l
o
a
n
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
D
r
i
n
k
i
n
g
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 
h
a
s
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 
$
1
3
.
1
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
3
1
 

1
7

 
 
n
e
w
 
l
o
a
n
s
.
 
 
I
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

1
8

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
a
 
l
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
A
u
d
i
t
,
 
a
s
 
J
a
c
o
b
 
S
t
u
c
k
e
y
 

2
1

 
 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
e
d
,
 
R
S
M
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 

2
2

 
 
2
0
1
9
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
-
y
e
a
r
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 

2
3

 
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
p
h
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
e
l
d
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
l
l

2
4

4
4

 
 
b
e
g
i
n
 
o
n
 
M
a
y
 
2
8
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
-
 
-
-
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
o
r
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
p
r
e
m
i
s
e
s
 

2

 
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
J
u
n
e
 
3
0
t
h
.
 
 
A
s
 
t
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
e
s
,
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

3

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
o
u
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
,
 
C
M
S
 

5

 
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
o
r
s
.
 

6

 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
w
o
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
C
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
s
,
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
t
w
o
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 

9

 
 
b
y
 
J
u
n
e
 
3
0
t
h
.
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
t
w
o
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
0

 
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
9
 
A
u
d
i
t
 

1
1

 
 
P
l
a
n
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
s
o
u
n
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

1
6

 
 
a
 
b
r
o
k
e
n
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 
b
u
t
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
e
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
i
n
 
a
 
m
u
c
h
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
h
a
n
 

1
9

 
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
h
a
l
f
 
a
g
o
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
,
 
i
f
 
w
e
 

2
0

 
 
c
a
n
 
g
e
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
i
s
h
 
l
i
n
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
J
u
n
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
r
e
a
k
 

2
1

 
 
e
v
e
n
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
a
 
t
r
e
m
e
n
d
o
u
s
 
v
i
c
t
o
r
y
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

2
2

 
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
v
e
r
y
 
h
a
r
d
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
i
t
 
s
h
o
w
s
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
t
h
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 65



4
5

 
 
I
F
A
 
-
-
 
a
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
i
t
h
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
r
a
n
s
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
w
o
r
k
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 

3

 
 
y
o
u
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
a
n
d
 

6

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.
 
 
M
y
 
n
a
m
e
 
i
s
 
T
i
f
f
a
n
y
 
M
c
C
o
y
,
 
a
n
d
 

7

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 

8

 
 
d
e
b
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
f
i
n
d
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
e
a
c
h
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
I
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
 
a
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 

1
0

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
a
s
 
a
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 

1
1

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
s
 
a
 

1
2

 
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
T
r
e
a
s
u
r
y
 
f
u
n
d
s
.
 
 
C
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

1
4

 
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
i
e
s
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
a
 
s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
d
e
b
t
 

1
5

 
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 
w
e
 
r
e
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
e
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 
d
e
b
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 

1
8

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
n
o
w
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
l
l
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
A
c
t
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

2
0

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
l
i
m
i
t
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
d
e
b
t
s
 
a
r
e
 

2
1

 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
2
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
a
l
l
y
,
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
1
 
m
a
i
n
t
a
i
n
s
 
a
 

2
3

 
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
s
s
u
e
d

2
4

4
6

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
A
c
t
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
e
d
 
b
y
 

1

 
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
1
A
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
1
D
 
n
o
w
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 

2

 
 
e
a
c
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
i
c
a
l
 
l
i
m
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
d
e
b
t
 
l
i
m
i
t
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
,
 
a
g
g
r
e
g
a
t
e
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
a
g
g
r
e
g
a
t
e
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
 
c
o
u
n
t
 
a
g
a
i
n
s
t
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

6

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
l
i
m
i
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
$
2
8
.
1
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
a
c
h
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 

7

 
 
b
o
u
n
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
i
c
a
l
 
l
i
m
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
s
 
o
u
t
l
i
n
e
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
i
m
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
s
 
i
s
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
a
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 

1
1

 
 
8
3
0
-
2
5
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
A
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
B
o
n
d
 
I
n
d
e
b
t
e
d
n
e
s
s
 
L
i
m
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
i
n
 
f
o
r
 

1
3

 
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 

1
5

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
r
e
m
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
Z
o
n
e
 
F
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 

1
7

 
 
s
u
b
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
a
n
d
 

1
8

 
 
R
e
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
A
c
t
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
9
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
d
i
d
 
e
x
p
i
r
e
 
i
n
 

1
9

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
0
;
 
r
e
m
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
i
z
i
n
g
 

2
0

 
 
a
 
Q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
B
o
n
d
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 

2
1

 
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 
I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
 

2
2

 
 
a
n
d
 
E
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
A
c
t
 
o
f
 
2
0
0
8
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
d
i
d
 
e
x
p
i
r
e
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
7
 

2
3

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
;
 
r
e
m
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
t
i
o
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 66



4
7

 
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
i
z
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
D
i
s
a
s
t
e
r
 
A
r
e
a
 
B
o
n
d
 

1

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
H
e
a
r
t
l
a
n
d
 

2

 
 
D
i
s
a
s
t
e
r
 
T
a
x
 
R
e
l
i
e
f
 
A
c
t
 
o
f
 
2
0
0
8
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
d
i
d
 
e
x
p
i
r
e
 
i
n
 

3

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
1
2
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
f
e
r
r
e
d
 

4

 
 
A
c
t
i
o
n
 
C
h
i
l
d
h
o
o
d
 
A
r
r
i
v
a
l
,
 
o
r
 
D
A
C
A
,
 
L
o
a
n
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
i
n
 

5

 
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
2
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
a
r
e
 

7

 
 
i
n
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
a
 
m
o
r
e
 
c
l
e
a
r
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
c
i
s
e
 
p
i
c
t
u
r
e
 

8

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
d
e
b
t
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
.
 
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
w
i
l
l
 

9

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
m
o
n
i
t
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
c
o
n
s
u
l
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
B
o
n
d
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 

1
1

 
 
a
s
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
s
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
.
 

1
5

 
 
S
o
r
r
y
 
f
o
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
r
u
p
t
i
n
g
 
y
o
u
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
o
k
a
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 

1
8

 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
f
o
r
 
M
s
.
 
G
r
a
n
d
a
 
o
r
 
M
s
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
e
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

2
4

4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
f
o
u
n
d
 
i
n
 

1
1

 
 
y
o
u
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
o
o
k
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
a
b
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
4

 
 
O
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
 
n
o
t
e
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 

1
5

 
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
2
0
1
9
/
2
0
2
0
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
s
 
e
x
p
i
r
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
7

 
 
c
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
S
i
x
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 

2
2

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 

2
3

 
 
A
p
r
i
l
 
9
t
h
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 67



4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

2

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
W
e
b
e
r
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
I
 
a
m
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
 
I
t
e
m
 
X
I
,
 
C
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
A
c
t
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
R
e
g
a
r
d
i
n
g
 
W
h
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
o
 
O
p
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
C
l
o
s
e
d
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 

1
8

 
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
1
,
 
2
0
1
8
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
1
8
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 

2
0

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
e
n
t
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
t
o
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
2
(
c
)
(
1
1
)
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 

2
2

 
 
O
p
e
n
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
A
c
t
 
t
o
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
l
i
t
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.

2
4

5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
1
8
,
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

3

 
 
 
k
e
e
p
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 

4

 
 
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
i
c
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 
b
y
 

5

 
 
 
t
h
e
 
O
p
e
n
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
A
c
t
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
p
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 

7

 
 
c
o
n
f
i
d
e
n
t
i
a
l
,
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
f
o
u
n
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
d
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

8

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
a
s
s
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 

9

 
 
a
l
s
o
 
e
-
m
a
i
l
e
d
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
 
l
a
s
t
 
F
r
i
d
a
y
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 
t
i
m
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
o
 
o
p
e
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
o
r
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 
t
h
e
m
 

1
2

 
 
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
i
c
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
l
i
t
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
s
 
o
n
g
o
i
n
g
.
 

1
5

 
 
A
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
l
y
,
 
i
f
 
n
o
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
i
s
h
e
s
 
t
o
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
,
 
I
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
n
o
w
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 

1
7

 
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
i
c
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 

1
8

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
d
e
s
i
r
e
 
f
o
r
 

2
0

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
I
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
d
e
f
e
r
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
 
I
t
e
m
 
X
I
I
I
,
 
C
l
o
s
e
d
 
S
e
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
v
o
t
e
 

2
2

 
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
a
f
t
e
r
w
a
r
d
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 68



5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
d
e
s
i
r
e
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
i
n
t
o
 

2

 
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 

3

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
e
l
d
 
o
n
 

4

 
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
1
t
h
,
 
2
0
1
8
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

7

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
u
n
t
i
l
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
i
c
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
O
p
e
n
 

9

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
s
 
A
c
t
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
;
 

1
4

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

2
4

5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
W
r
i
g
h
t
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 

1
6

 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
q
u
i
c
k
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
8

 
 
w
a
s
 
c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
s
.
 
 
O
n
e
 
o
f
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 

2
0

 
 
o
n
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
.
 
 
V
i
c
e
 

2
1

 
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
l
e
a
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
 
f
o
r
 

2
2

 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
h
a
l
f
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
n
i
g
h
t
 
o
u
r
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 69



5
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
L
a
w
 
a
n
d
 
P
o
l
i
c
y
 

1

 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 
M
a
j
o
r
i
t
y
 

2

 
 
l
e
g
a
l
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
w
h
a
t
'
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
a
s
 
a
 
v
e
h
i
c
l
e
 

3

 
 
b
i
l
l
,
 
a
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
b
i
l
l
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
.
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 

5

 
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
i
l
l
,
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
B
i
l
l
 

6

 
 
3
5
0
1
 
-
-
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
B
i
l
l
 
3
5
0
1
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 

7

 
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
r
e
w
r
i
t
e
 
l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 
o
n
 
C
-
P
A
C
E
 
t
h
a
t
 

8

 
 
M
r
.
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
s
p
e
n
t
 
m
a
n
y
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
 

9

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
o
u
t
s
i
d
e
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
n
a
t
o
r
 
M
e
l
i
n
d
a
 
B
u
s
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

1
1

 
 
s
p
o
n
s
o
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
s
p
o
n
s
o
r
,
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
s
o
 

1
2

 
 
b
e
e
n
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
i
l
l
,
 
w
h
o
'
s
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
 
f
r
i
e
n
d
 
o
f
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
B
e
r
t
i
n
o
-
T
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
i
s
 
s
i
g
n
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
o
v
e
r
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
 
S
e
n
a
t
o
r
 
B
u
s
h
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
o
p
e
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
i
t
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
s
 

1
5

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
,
 
i
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
p
o
n
s
o
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
R
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
 

1
6

 
 
N
a
t
a
l
i
e
 
M
a
n
l
e
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
I
 
d
o
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
 

1
8

 
 
m
o
m
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
T
i
f
f
a
n
y
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
a
n
d
 
B
r
a
d
 
F
l
e
t
c
h
e
r
 
f
o
r
 

1
9

 
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
c
l
o
s
e
l
y
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 
d
e
b
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
i
s
 

2
0

 
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
,
 
h
a
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
e
n
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
o
o
k
 
a
 
l
o
o
k
 
a
t
 
i
t
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
2

 
 
f
r
e
s
h
 
e
y
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
i
t
 
i
n
 
a
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 

2
3

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
l
a
w
.

2
4

5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
g
a
i
n
 

1

 
 
o
u
r
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
W
a
t
e
r
,
 
L
i
s
a
 
B
o
n
n
e
t
t
.
 
 
S
h
e
 
w
a
s
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
o
n
e
,
 
a
s
 
I
E
P
A
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
2
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
r
e
w
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
p
l
a
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
f
o
u
n
d
 
o
n
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
r
a
n
k
i
n
g
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
s
 
y
o
u
'
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
,
 
s
h
e
'
s
 

5

 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
 

6

 
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
s
p
a
c
e
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
;
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 

1
6

 
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
h
o
p
e
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
'
s
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
h
i
s
 
c
o
r
n
 
i
n
 

2
3

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 70



5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 

2

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
s
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
N
o
?
 
 
G
o
o
d
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y
 

6

 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
J
u
n
e
 
1
1
t
h
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

8

 
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
R
I
G
H
T
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
1
0
:
3
1
 
a
.
m
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
W
h
e
r
e
u
p
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
o
v
e
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
w
a
s
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
e
d
.
)
 

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 71



 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

VOICE VOTE 

MAY 14, 2019 AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 
Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 72



NO. 1A 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE1A 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – JONATHAN EDWARD BARTH 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 73



NO. 1B 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE1B 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – CHAD M. STEIDINGER 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 
 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 74



NO. 1C 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE1C 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – ADAM R. & SHELBY A. ROBERTSON 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 
 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 75



NO. 02 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE02 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – MIDWESTERN UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 
 

 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 76



NO. 03 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE03 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT REVENUE BOND – COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NUMBER 99, DUPAGE COUNTY 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 
 

 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 77



NO. 04 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE04 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT REVENUE BOND – COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NUMBER 95, LAKE COUNTY 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 
 

 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 78



NO. 05 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-DA05 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY BONDS – 11 MILLION ACRES, 

LLC 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 
 

 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 79



NO. 06 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-TE06 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $10,000,000 IN 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY’S 

EDUCATIONAL FACILITY REVENUE BOND (DE LA SALLE INSTITUTE PROJECT), 
SERIES 2019, THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH ARE TO BE LOANED TO DE LA SALLE 

INSTITUTE 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 
 

 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 80



NO. 07 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-AP07 
RESOLUTION APPROVING CERTAIN UPDATES TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY BOND HANDBOOK 

ADOPTED* 
 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 
 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 81



NO. 08 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2019-0514-GP08 
RESOLUTION UPDATING THE DESIGNATION AND/OR SCOPE OF CERTAIN 

COMMITTEES OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY; AND RELATED MATTERS 

ADOPTED* 
 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 
 * – Consent Agenda 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 82



 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

VOICE VOTE 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
ACCEPTED 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 
Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 83



 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

VOICE VOTE 

APRIL 9, 2019 MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 

 
May 14, 2019 

 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 

Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 
Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 

 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 84



 

 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ROLL CALL 

CONSIDERATION AND ACTION REGARDING WHETHER TO OPEN CLOSED SESSION 
MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 

MOTION TO KEEP MINUTES CLOSED 

ADOPTED 
 

 

May 14, 2019 
 

9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 

 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Smoots 
Y Goetz Y Obernagel Y Wright 

Y Juracek E O’Brien E Zeller 

Y Knox  Y Poole  Y Mr. Chairman 

 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 1), Page 85


	AGENDA A 2019-06 (v8)
	AGENDA B 2019-06 (v8)
	Executive Director Msg June 2019 (v5)
	01 Blessing Hospital 2019 Project Summary Report (v2) CLEAN
	02 PUBLIC Beginning Farmer Bond Summary 06 11 19 (v2)
	Memorandum

	03 Lake Forest Academy Amend 2019-06 (v4)
	04 UCMC Ingalls - Memo to Board (v3)
	05 Budget A - FY 2020 Budget Narrative Final
	05 Budget B - FY 2020 Budget Resolution v2
	05 Budget C - FY 2020 Budget 6-6-19 General Operating Fund Only
	06 Meeting Schedule A - FY 2020 Meeting Dates Resolution v2
	06 Meeting Schedule B - FY2020 Meeting Schedule
	07 Exec Dir Confirmation of Appointment v4
	Financials Memo Analysis May 2019 (v2)
	Financial Statements 2019 MAY MONTHLY FINANCIALS Board
	TREASURY REPORT 01-Bonds Issued Fiscal Year Three Year May-30-2019
	TREASURY REPORT 02-Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book-Activity Report
	TREASURY REPORT 03-Schedule of Debt 2019-05
	MINUTES A Cover Memo 061119
	MINUTES B - Board Minutes 05-14-19 (vTILED)
	MINUTES C 05-14-19-board-voting-record



